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Corporate Information
NGIE=VE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Kai Fung (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Kwok Sze Chi

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson
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Mr. Yu Yun Kong
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Mr. Chan Kai Fung
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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

10th Floor and 27th Floor, Wing On House
71 Des Voeux Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Appleby Trust (Cayman) Ltd.
Clifton House, 75 Fort Street
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KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Chong Hing Bank Limited
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Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
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The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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AUDITOR

KPMG
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WEBSITE
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Major Accomplishments
NEE
2013

n April 48

. Awarded by hexun.com, a well-known financial

website in China as “The Best Overseas Futures
Company 2012"
‘-"..lu. ?ﬁpr]h'ﬁﬂ]&n

58 ] 7O 5 4 4R34 (R ) B 5 (20128 18 W ol an ba2ansn
SR AR EE ey

July 78

. Launched “bullion trading” services — no interest,

free of commission, lowest price in town and
unlimited cash rebate — with full transparency,
and no trading on behalf of customers

EEIREE2EEIRE 280 2@ 2
WETY ELERREOE 250 TREZRS
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August 8 B

Diamond Sponsor of “Joyful Charity Run in Ocean
Park” for the third consecutive year
EE-FRAILVEBITHRBEFARZSHIO
BREB®E

September 9H

The futures trading system “High Speed Trader”
was put into operation officially

HA & 1% 5 2 41" High Speed Trader” IE XX 1% A BR 75

October 10 A

Awarded by HKEx as one of “The Highest Trading
Volume Securities Trader of RMB Currency
Futures”
KESERXGMBERIARBEEHERSRFHE
ZEHEIKE

Invited by HKEx to participate in the “RMB
Currency Futures Education and Promotional
Program”, in which both parties worked together
to promote the popularity of RMB currency
futures products
ERRXGMBFL2MIARKEEREERHE
RiEETE ] BFREAREKENHEERNE
gk

Major Accomplishments K=&
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Major Accomplishments K=&

n November 118

o Launched a brand new high-speed online trading

platform

HHEHWELBERZZFE

o Students from Middlebury College of the
University of Hong Kong visited Bright Smart

and experienced the distinguished investment

environment and excellent trading platform
EREREAEEREBLEZ2HER  BREFSOR
BERBEREHENZHFAE

o Postgraduates students from Shenzhen University
visited Bright Smart's Kowloon Headquarter for
an understanding of the Group's operations and
the financial market development in Hong Kong
RINKBETEDBRS NER  THREEE
BEERBBERTISER

o Baptist University sent a thank you letter to Bright
Smart, commending its active communication
with the future leaders in the society and its
effort in promoting the development of Hong
Kong's financial industry
RERBRRA BRRGHE - BB A B E AR R
HERRZIR - HHEECREERR
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December 12 A

The grand opening of the Bright Smart Branch in
North Point

BAIADTEERS

Awarded by China Securities Golden Bauhinia
Awards Committee as one of “The Highest
Growth Potential Enterprises”

BAIKETHES S EKAREZTGHRE[KRANK
M e AR EIE

The Group's leading position in the industry was
again recognized by being selected as one of the
Main Board listed companies in the “Hong Kong
Outstanding Enterprises Parade 2013”
BERIBEBRDGEKEZB2013] 2ERLETA
Al E—PETEERBEBRESFE 2EE MM

Major Accomplishments K=&
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Major Accomplishments K=&
2014

January 1A

o Worked with HKEx to introduce After-Hour
Futures Trading, including Mini-HSI Futures and
Mini H-shares Index Futures
A BRXAMERBER  BFENAEEBEEERY
B RNEHRIEBEHE R

February 28 ' =

o Chow Tai Fook subscribed for the Company’s

placing shares and became the second largest
shareholder of the Company

ERRBAR  AREBXAARRAAE KRR

o Bright Smart booked the Ocean Theatre at Tsim

Sha Tsui exclusively for two consecutive Sundays

during Chinese New Year. More than one —
thousand customers brought their friends and
relatives to enjoy the Chinese New Year holiday
movies
BANFTEREEENEZ2H A RRDEEER
REBESREFPEE  BTREPERBKAER

u.u:
22

IIﬂu}
[HH
Ry

° Organized the “Futures Emperor Contest” with
full support from HKEx. Overwhelming response
was received with a large number of participants
BEZMENXEERTHPEREFHFE] TR
RERZ  2EERZ
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March 38

Selected by cnfol.com, a well-known financial
website in China as “The Most Trusted Hong
Kong Securities Trader”
ERMEHEEU(h 2 ER)ERIRRER
BRI

The Group’s Executive Director and Marketing
Director, Mr. Kwok Sze Chi, was elected as “The
Most Trusted Hong Kong Famous Stock Analyst
by Investors” in the 2013 Annual Financial
Ranking Competition
RNEBEHITE ST EHEEE BB E (6Sin) &

BRIOBFEMEHTERIREEEBER
=

Launched the mobile application version of High

Speed Trader for futures trading
#E HiHigh Speed Traderfi &2 5 F & F# Apps

C—
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Branch Network

D17

&

ELHD

10th Floor, ng On House, 71 Des Voeux Road, Central
PREBEPTIRALERRNEI10ELE

27th Floor, Wlng On House, 71 Des Voeux Road, Central
FREHERRKEEERE27E

Mezzanine Floor, Peter Building, 58-60 Queen’s Road, Central

hRERAEDSE-60RRAAEREE

1st Floor, Henning House, No. 385-391 Hennessy Road, Wanchai
BIHREBE- BT EAEIERE

Shop G2, G/F Floor, Max Share Centre, 373 King's Road, North Point
It AR EE3735 FEP O I G24H

Shop 7, G/F and Mezzanine Floor, Tak Lee Building, 993 King's Road,
Quarry Bay
BB RREBIBTENE T/ REREERE

Shop 7 on G/F, Whole of Mezzanine Floor and Whole of 1st Floor,
Honour House, Nos. 375-381, Nathan Road, Kowloon

N E375-381 e B AR N 754 HERIERE

Whole of 1st Floor, Golden Hill Commercial Building, 39-41 Argyle Street,

Mongkok
EAGEEH-ARSUBEAREIELE

Basement, G/F & Cockloft, 39 Yen Chow Street, Sham Shui Po
FK SN £139% S T

Shop18, G/F, Cambridge Building, 10 Tung Ming Street, Kwun Tong
BRBAEORSBERSRMMT

Shop 79 and 80 of Podium Floor, No. 51-53 Broadway Street,
Mei Foo Sun Chuen Phasejl Mei Foo )
EFHEEGS-53REF NN E3HT 279-805 4

Shop 4 on G/F & Shops 5 & 6 on 1st Floor, The Prince Place,
No. 398 Prince Edward Road West, Kowloon
JUBEBI R FiEFI3985 40 o X F i T 45 8 R 11E5-65% 4

G/F, 103 Wuhu Street, HungHom
4T B 8 41471 0358 S T

Flat A&B, 12/F., Hang Sang Tsuen Wan Building, 289 Sha Tsui Road,
Tsuen Wan
LBV IHE289RBAEEERNE122ABE

Shop A, G/F & Portion of the Yard, 66 Tai Wai Road, Tai Wai
REAE 66 ELIE 1 FAS

GIF & Cockloft 141-145 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po
KB ERE1-145% 50 T K g

Shop 5, G/F, 26 Fook Tak Street 22 Tung Lok Street, Yuen Long
TRAR 265 R A L2250 T £58

Unit 2007-2009, 20/F, Landmark North, 39 Lung Sum Avenue, Sheung Shui

EIOKBEBREE39%% £ /KB H20%2007-2009%
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T: (852) 3120 0388
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Branch Network 9 1748 4%
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Awards %18

Bright Smart Securities adheres to the servicing principles of “Integrity, Sincerity, Fairness, Conscience and Customer

Foremost”. With its excellent service quality Ifillment of corporate social responsibilities, Bright Smart

Securities has successfully maintained goc the market and earned recognitions from all sectors as

exemplified in the numerous awards t
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Financial Highlights
B 75540 22

(Unit: HK$'000, unless stated otherwise)
(BEf7 - BB For  BRIFFFIH)

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=+—HLEE

2013 2014

Year ended 31 March
HE-A=-+—HILFE

2013 2014

Year ended 31 March
HEZA=T—HIFE

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2013/14

2014 2013 Increment
—E-mE —ET—= Bl
Turnover B 410,380 273,281 50.2%
Other revenue & 74,408 57,724 28.9%
Profit from operations 4 g | 241,927 123,958 95.2%
n Profit before taxation R % A i ) 196,600 107,151 83.5%
Profit attributable to equity 7 5 R 3R A 5 A
shareholders 166,747 92,226 80.8%
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREXRBH W) 15.97 10.18 56.9%
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) &M EERF GB1l) 15.96 10.17 56.9%
Final dividend per share (HK cents) BB S GEIL) 4.5 2.7 66.7%
Turnover Net Profit
EEHE #h R
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEETT
500 200
410.4 166.7
400
150
300
100 92.2
200
100 >0
0 0
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Despite the unpredictable global financial market and the weak investor sentiment in Hong Kong, the Group has

continued to deliver good results with sustainable business growth. The profit for the Year increased significantly,
with total number of client accounts exceeding 110,000 and total client assets over HK$20 billion. The market share
continued to record steady growth. During the Year, Chow Tai Fook subscribed for the Company’s placing shares
and became the second largest shareholder of the Company, highlighting the Group’s unquestionable capability and
corporate strength. In the future, the Group will continue its efforts in exploring more development opportunities,
which include the strengthening of its “Bright Smart Finance Channel”, and stepping up of our connection with
mainland China through “interoperability” of “Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect”—so as to capture more
customers, promote the exchanges and communication between the two places, and enhance the reputation of the
Group, with an objective to become the most reputable Hong Kong securities company across the nation.

EREMMSEIRY  XESRTERERFBEAF  ARENAEESE  XBEEB L AFREZEFNKIE
Lt BPEBBAEBET—BFP XPEENCENEB_AR MmHEAXBSERRER -FR AEEHE

LERZER MR BRMRAZCGRAMES)  WEBIEHEB® I BEMERAPE AN ER  BRAEZTR €
EMZREERE - REAEENHNEE  HBTEXNAEERANETESRE -

BAIBHEHMEBERAR « —_T— =/ —FFR



Chairman’s Statement F &%
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BRIGHT SMART SECURITIES

| am pleased to present to the shareholders the annual results
of Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 March 2014 (the “Year”). The global financial
market was affected by the US Federal Reserve’s tapering of its
quantitative easing policy and the expectation of interest rate
hike. Coupled with the concern over the economic slowdown
in China, the investor sentiment in the local stock market
turned cautious and trading volume was low, resulting in a very
challenging business environment for securities dealers. In spite
of the adversities, the Group was able to seize every opportunity
from the crisis, aggressively expand its business and achieve
outstanding performance. Significant growth was recorded in
total turnover and net profit, hitting the Group’s record high. It
is gratifying that we have achieved such impressive results during

the Year, which exemplify the Group’s excellence in operation
and advantage in brand identity.

The Group has made every effort to expand its customer base
and enlarge its market coverage. Through excellent management
and branch expansion plans, the Group’s reputation was greatly
enhanced and the number of customers increased significantly.
The Group recorded a total turnover of HK$410.4 million (2013:
HK$273.3 million) for the Year, representing an increase of
50.2% over the year ended 31 March 2013 (the “Prior Year”).
Net profit surged 80.8% to HK$166.7 million (2013: HK$92.2
million), brokerage commission income increased 35.7% vyear-
on-year to HK$293.4 million (2013: HK$216.2 million), and
margin loan interest increased 92.0%, reaching HK$107.3 million
(2013: HK$55.9 million). It is especially encouraging to see the
substantial growth in terms of the Group’s brokerage business
and margin lending.

RAMABZULBIRREZRS ESTHEEFR
RA([ARA]) REME AR (GHEIAEE])
BE_T-MOF=A=+—BLEFETXRFE]
ZEEEE AFERREBMTNE D X H 5
EREMIBHMNEFELELFREELER
MR BEAHBTRERFEBER B
o SERERBETMAE - MERNKEDERE
BHNMEZEEEKE  BRAREBLRESEES
B MEXBERANBAREERYATESS
& BEANEANE AFERGEREES  HE
AEENEHEENREES -

AEBRTREREREATSEZHETESR -
BREREHONEERSTTHERAEAAE
EMAZERER ABKIEEN  SEHREEF
EREXEFMI0LABEBTL(ZE—=9F:2733
BESEL) BEE-_ZT—="FZA=1+—1tF
B ([ EEE]) EF50.2% @ {5 7K = B4 K K38
80.8% E166.7E BB L (ZT—=9F:92.278
BB KBl iE29BAEEBT(ZE
—ZF 2162888 L)  HFELEA3BT% &
FREEMNBZI073AEET(ZT—=4F
55.9B &8 IT) 0 EF192.0% ° Al R AL B &4
E¥BRTREEHHRSEELRE  KEZER
ANEBIRE o
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Profit attributable to equity shareholders was HK$166.7 million
(2013: HK$92.2 million),
80.8% over the Prior Year. Basic earnings per share was HK15.97

representing a significant increase of

cents (2013: HK10.18 cents), representing a year-on-year growth
of 56.9%. The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
proposed a final dividend of HK4.50 cents per share for the Year
(2013: HK2.70 cents per share).

With the looming interest rate hike and a number of unfavorable
news reports during the Year, the confidence in the investment
market was eroded and the investor sentiment was weak.
Active trading in the market was not witnessed but a gradual
slowdown of economic growth was becoming evident. Despite
the challenging business environment, the Group will still actively
seize business opportunities and seek for expansion of business
in this time of adversities, through continuously improving the
Group’s competitiveness and aggressively capturing of market
share. In face of the difficult operation environment, the
Group was still able to offer innovative services and products
continuously in response to market needs. With an aim to explore
development opportunities, to broaden customer base and to
expand revenue streams, the Group executed its well-planned
business strategies and successfully captured market share during
the Year, resulting in an increase in total transaction amount for
the trading of Hong Kong stocks despite the unfavorable market.

BARBSEHEBERLDF o
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Chairman’s Statement F &%

To keep pace with its branch expansion plan, the Group has set
up new branches aggressively. The new North Point Branch and
Kowloon Headquarter commenced operation officially during the
Year, and currently there are a total of 16 branches (excluding
the Central Head Office) under the Group. The Kowloon
Headquarter, as a branch and a backup support office with an
area of 20,000 square feet, is located at the prime location on
Nathan Road with extremely high traffic flow. It was opened
officially and put into operation on 2 May 2014, providing further
assurance to the customers’ interests and assets. In addition to
its remarkable geographical advantage for the solicitation of a
large number of potential customers, Kowloon Headquarter will
also serve to support the development arising from the close
connection between the Group and mainland China in the future.
The other branches are located in areas including Wanchai,
Hung Hom, Tai Wai, Mongkok, Yuen Long and Sheung Shui.
The objective is to deliver the Group’s professional and tailored
services to customers in all districts, and to effectively enhance
the Group's visibility.

It has always been the Group’s principle that “customers and
quality of service are no.1 priorities”. To this end, we have
developed and launched diversified financial products for the
customers in response to the changes in the market. During
the Year, the Group has launched the commission-free bullion
trading service and became the first and the only securities dealer
in Hong Kong who provides real-time information in number of
contracts and prices. The customers can view the transaction
status in one glance and feel at ease in bullion trading with a
transparent platform which is fair, just and open.

REAKENTERME  AEEBEHHARD
J& - ¥TERMIE AN T RNERIT IR AFELE
ARF - ARAKEZHTHE D ETAH (D
BRPRETT) MAERBTEERARE G
HENRBBZOME (EMEREBEERSTT
RgEhrEzB ER-ZE-—NFRAZBLE
AFABLTERARYE  EEFMNAREEFER
IR o BRI T AR BMtRESAEATP
SN TR AN RERREA ML BEERNER
WREE) c MABRKDITERNES 8 - K
CEEA TR BKE BREARE 2 HEE
MEOLZREEEZES & RARTRERRES
REBEZHMAE -

[AERE RBFE -] —AEARENRSE R
B RM-ERHEE  BEIHELEES T
EHERERUNREPRE - RAFEAKEH
hRZAE2RNAEETLEERY - LKRAE
AHE-BARKISEERILERNRSE -
RHGRRA—B TR EXHAF - RIE- AR
BEPANZOETRERESERELAD -
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Chairman’s Statement ¥ /&5

In parallel with the After-Hour Futures Trading introduced by
HKEx, the Group has also launched after-hour products including
Mini-HSI Futures, Mini H-shares Index Futures and RMB currency
futures, so that customers can monitor the global market
conditions closely and participate timely in the trading of various

types of new investment products.

In view of a series of futures products introduced by HKEx, the
Group organized the “Futures Emperor Contest” with full support
from HKEx, so as to improve the investors’ understanding of the
products through simulated trading games.

We always strive to offer our customers more diversified
investment products and services. The Group took a step further
and developed on our own the brand new high-speed online
futures trading system—"HIGH SPEED TRADER". It was launched
in September during the Year, with its mobile application
version which was launched in March 2014. With "HIGH SPEED
TRADER"”, a customer needs only to install one application and
will be able to start trading instantly. The order placing feature
in the system allows customers to place orders in a timely and
accurate manner in the rapidly changing futures market.

During the Year, the Group has embarked on gradually relocating
its central computer system to the data centre of HKEx located in
Tseung Kwan O. This is for the purpose of uplifting the capability
to handle huge amount of online transactions through a more
stable, efficient and safe system as a result of our strategy to
maintain online trading as the core of business development.

BARBSEHEBERLDF o

mt.'m" SMART SECURI' T'TES
fasENEGRA(1428)E A

BREATMIENRBAER K&
/NHUH
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HE TN LB ERRR S ES —HIGH SPEED

TRADER] ° T it 475 #) T # F& A 32 ZU(APPS) TR AR
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Chairman’s Statement F &%

In terms of investor education, the Group has always worked
closely with HKEx and other major financial institutions to
promote the investors’ understanding of various types of
investment products, through conducting joint seminars or
broadcasting global market analyses and investment product
information over the Group’s website and Bright Smart Finance
Channel. The Group was also honored to be invited by HKEx
to participate in the "RMB Currency Futures Education and
Promotional Program” as a partner to jointly promote the
popularity of RMB currency futures in October during the Year.
In the same month, the Group was awarded by HKEx as one of
“The Highest Trading Volume Securities trader of RMB Currency
Futures”. Other than these, the Group was also selected by
cnfol.com, a well-known financial website in China, as “The
Most Trusted Hong Kong Securities Trader”; awarded by hexun.
com, also a well known financial website in China, as “The
Best Overseas Futures Company 2012"; and was awarded by
China Securities Golden Bauhinia Award Committee as one
of “The Highest Growth Potential Enterprises”. These awards
strongly demonstrate the Group’s capability and leadership in the
industry, and prove that in addition to Hong Kong, the Group
is holding a prominent position in the mainland market with its
reputation increasing steadily.

The Group supports the fostering of future leaders in the society
through encouraging communications between Hong Kong and
mainland China. During the Year, the Group invited students
from Middlebury College of the University of Hong Kong to visit
our Central Head Office and to experience our distinguished
investment environment and excellent trading platform.
Postgraduate students from Shenzhen University were also
invited to visit our Kowloon Headquarter for an understanding
of the Group’s operations and the financial market system
in Hong Kong. We received a thank you letter from Baptist
University, commending the Group’s active communication with
the future leaders in the society and its efforts in promoting the
development of Hong Kong’s financial industry.
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The Group’'s information platform, “Bright Smart Finance
Channel”, has been providing timely global financial information
to the public. To improve the Group’s information platform
and to keep pace with the market trend, we will bring reforms
to the Finance Channel by adding a number of new elements,
in which a new webcast Q&A session will be provided to the
investors to facilitate timely and smart investment decisions.
The Finance Channel has always been hosted by Mr. Kwok Sze
Chi, an Executive Director and Marketing Director of the Group.
He was elected by cnfol.com, a well-known financial website in
China as “The Most Trusted Hong Kong Famous Stock Analyst by
Investors”.

OUTLOOK

Despite a stock market that is constantly changing, the impact
of the US Fed tapering and other uncertainties in the global
economy, the Group still holds a cautiously optimistic view on
Hong Kong's economy as well as the prospects of the Group's
business development; it is still confident that there is unlimited
room for potential development. The Group will stand firm
against difficulties and challenges, make strategic adjustments
according to the market trend and create more development and
growth opportunities for the Group.

In order to capture new customers, increase market share and
enhance brand awareness, the Group will continue to identify
appropriate locations to set up new branches for business
expansion, with an objective to extend the branch network to
every district in Hong Kong. After Premier Li Kegiang has pointed
out that the inter-connection and inter-operability between the
Shanghai and Hong Kong stock markets should be established
to facilitate the opening of capital markets in both mainland and
Hong Kong for each other. The Group has already made sufficient
preparations for the development of the mainland market,
and is confident that the Group can capture more mainland
investors and establish a position in the mainland market after
the implementation of the inter-connection and inter-operability
between the markets.
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Chairman’s Statement F &%

The increased popularity of electronic products has facilitated the
advent of the internet world. We will take opportunity of this
insight and change with the time, by putting more resources in
the “Bright Smart Finance Channel” for the promotion of the
Group's products and services, as well as for the generation of
more advertising income.

While constantly involved in the development of business, the
Group has not forgotten the importance in fulfilling its corporate
social responsibilities and has contributed to the society by
actively supporting various types of charitable activities. During
the Year, the Group sponsored the “Joyful Charity Run to Ocean
Park” and organized the event jointly with Joyful (Mental Health)
Foundation to raise funds for the promotion of public awareness
of emotional health, and to advocate the importance of exercise
It was the third
consecutive year that the Group has become a diamond sponsor

for the maintenance of emotional health.

of the “Joyful Charity Run to Ocean Park”. The Group also
received a Golden Bauhinia Award by China Securities Golden
Bauhinia Awards Committee as “The Highest Growth Potential
Enterprises”. It was selected as one of the Main Board listed
companies in the “Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprises Parade
2013", representing a commendation of the Group’s constant
efforts and recognition of its leadership position in the securities
industry of Hong Kong.

Thanks to the management and sales teams for their teamwork
and untiring dedication, the Group has achieved outstanding
results persistently, and significantly improved its brand
awareness and market position. | am committed to working
closely with the Board of Directors and the senior management
to establish timely and clear development objectives, and lead the
Group toward greater achievements, with a view to becoming
an internationally recognized, diversified financial services
institution.
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One of the factors that contributed to the Group’s success is
a team of highly talented people. Therefore, in addition to the
year-end bonus, we organized an annual dinner for a sharing
of the results with the staff. We would also like to thank our
customers for their continued support. During Chinese New Year,
the Group booked the Ocean Theatre at Tsim Sha Tsui exclusively
for two days, offering free movies to the customers. The event
attracted more than one thousand customers who also brought
their friends and relatives. The event “Year of the Horse—Lucky
Money Every Day (F5EF|Z H BIK)” was held during the Chinese
New Year, in which cash and prizes amounting to a total of
approximately HK$200,000 were distributed to the customers, as
a gratitude for their long-term support.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to thank the
directors, the management team and all staff for their supports
and contributions in the past year. | would also like to express
my heartfelt gratitude to the shareholders and the customers for
their unrelenting confidence in and great support to the Group.

Yip Mow Lum
Chairman

Hong Kong
16 June 2014
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Management Discussion and AnalysIs

ERE RS

MARKET OVERVIEW

Reviewing the Year, we saw obvious change of sentiments in
the investment market. Despite the beginning of the scale back
of Quantitative Easing and hints of accelerated tapering by the
US Federal Reserve, the US economy expanded moderately,
the employment market further improved and the real estate
market continued with its recovery, fueling the sharp rise of the
US stocks. In the Euro zone, market confidence was gradually
restored and the European stock markets responded positively.
However, when faced with the risk of deflation and inconsistent
paces of recovery in different countries, the stance of the ECB
easing monetary policy will probably remain for some time.
In contrast, China’s economic growth reached 7.7% in 2013.
But with the government’s commitment to the policies of
“maintaining steady growth, imposing structural adjustment
and promoting reforms”, the market in general held a wait-and-
see attitude. Meanwhile, there were increasing downside risks
with the property market, the fear of local debt issues and the
resumption of IPOs. A number of uncertainties resulted in a weak
China’s stock market, which in turn affected the Hong Kong
stock market. Overall, the Hang Seng Index opened at 22,368
points on 2 April 2013 and was adjusted to 22,151 points on 31
March 2014, representing a cumulative decline of 1.0% during
the period.

™ % [0 B

CIEAFE  RWEMHRAALIRABAE - #R
KBRS BEERRMERINRET -
BEMEERNER AENHE-—FPHRE
FHET 5 IR E I8 - RUMERKIEELT - B
JTRITE - THEOEERE  BUNRMIFRX
BOESFRGBEEREST B N EHERRSE

B BNRTERESRE LSS E
—BRSE - REFPE —T—=FLERRNE
7.7%  BEBRMFHEHTIBIER  ALEE €
WEIBET  MBEHPRLCEERERTHE
REE R AMET NTREBRBIG - AN EEL
T ERERE  URIRERS  ZETHABEA
EEHAMB T ELRS  EFBRINZIE
Bolpams  EEB-ZE—=FNA-HHRAT
#922,368%  ABEE_T—NF=-H=1+—HH
22,1518 - AN RET I8 21.0% o

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2013/14



During the Year, the performance of the Hong Kong equities
was mixed with a little improvement in investor sentiment. The
average daily turnover was HK$61.16 billion, up 8.3% when
compared with the Prior Year. The average number of derivative
contracts traded daily on The Hong Kong Futures Exchange
Limited and the average number of stock options contracts
traded daily on the Stock Exchange were 284,869 and 248,696
(2013: 264,266 and 237,920) respectively. In the initial public
offering (“IPO”) market, there was a slight decrease in the
number of large and ultra-large IPO capital raising activities
during the Year as compared to the Prior Year. The number
of newly listed companies (on the Main Board and GEM Board
but excluding those transferred from GEM Board to the Main
Board) during the Year was 114 (2013: 55), and funds raised by
way of IPO were approximately HK$206.8 billion, representing
a decrease of 17.5% as compared to HK$250.7 billion in
the Prior Year. Looking to the future, as the adverse factors
affecting the market weaken, the number of new IPOs and fund-
raising amounts are expected to recover. For example, Magnum
Entertainment Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2080), the
first nightclub listed in Hong Kong in January, recorded a record-
breaking over-subscription, indicating a good sign for the kick-
off of the Main Board IPO activities this year. The Group believes
that Hong Kong, as an international financial centre, remains
attractive and of great importance, and is likely to continue to
stand among the world’s top three IPO fund raising centres this

year.

Looking into the financial year 2014/2015, the focus of the
market is on the interconnection mechanism for trading of stocks
in the Shanghai and Hong Kong stock markets (“Shanghai-Hong
Kong Stock Connect”) planned to be launched officially in the
second half of 2014. There is no doubt that this will bring mutual
benefits to the stock markets in Hong Kong and mainland China.
The inter-operability of the stock markets can provide a new
channel for the mainland investors to invest in the Hong Kong
market and attract a new batch of mainland investors to invest
in Hong Kong. It is expected that more capital will be attracted
to the Hong Kong market, which will stimulate the transaction
volume, and bring new momentum to the Hong Kong financial
market. The Group is still cautiously optimistic on the outlook
of the Hong Kong stock market, and believes the Hong Kong
investment market has good growth potential and the Hong
Kong stocks will remain to be of good prospects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis ‘&

OPERATING RESULTS

For the Year ended 31 March 2014, the Group’s turnover hit
a record high of HK$410.4 million (2013: HK$273.3 million),
representing a significant increase of 50.2%. Profit attributable
to equity shareholders was HK$166.7 million (2013: HK$92.2
million), representing an upward surge of 80.8% as compared
with the Prior Year. The impressive results for the Year were
mainly attributable to the aggressive business development
strategy taken by the management. With an extensive branch
network expansion plan and the strong support of marketing
promotion programs, success in customer acquisition was
significant and rapid expansion of customer base was realized,
which in turn contributed to a significant increase of brokerage
and commission income and fueled the growth of profit. The
encouraging results underscored the Group’s competitive
advantage among its peers in the industry. The basic earnings per
share was HK15.97 cents (2013: HK10.18 cents) and the diluted
earnings per share was HK15.96 cents (2013: HK10.17 cents).
The Board proposed a final dividend of HK4.50 cents (2013:
HK2.70 cents) per share for the Year.
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Total Number of Client Accounts and Client Assets

The increase in turnover was mainly attributable to the branch
network and marketing strategies, an expanding customer
base, and the growth of commission income. To ensure the
continuous improvement of customer service quality and achieve
the objective of “customers first”, a total of 13 selected branches
were opened for seven days a week. During the Year, 25,408
(after deducting the closed accounts) new accounts were opened
such that the total number of client accounts reached 114,668,
representing a repeated new record high and an increase of
28.5% as compared to the number of 89,260 recorded as of
31 March 2013. Client assets (included cash and stocks) also
recorded a substantial increase of 43.2%, reaching approximately
HK$21.2 billion (2013: approximately HK$14.8 billion).

Total Number of Client Accounts
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TURNOVER

During the Year under review, the Hong Kong stock market
experienced significant fluctuation. With the Group’s competitive
advantage in reputation and quality service, the Group launched
a number of aggressive promotional programs during the Year,
which resulted in significant growth in various business segments
including securities brokerage, futures brokerage and margin
financing. During the Year, the Group had a total turnover of
HK$410.4 million (2013: HK$273.3 million), representing an
increase of 50.2% over the Prior Year. A summary of the turnover
from all business segments of the Group is set out below:

BIEFA  BREBPAKEKRE  BEREASEED
=& RBEERFEZ  FAREEHELZEE
MRS SSEBRLEIHLEL  HEK
KERFERENEXEELBEGREELR  ~F
EHBBEEHLILAEBL (T —=F:
2733B8EL) BEFEERS50.2% - AEH
EEBOMzEXBHREHINOT

Year ended 31 March
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Proportion Proportion
of total of total
turnover turnover Increment
HBEXE LHEER
Z LBl Z LBl 12 fn
2014 % 2013 % %
—E-MmF —E-=F
HK$' 000 HK$'000
TER FET
Income from: REATEBEZHRA :
— Securities brokerage - BHLL 169,355 41.3% 123,923 45.4% 36.7%
- Hong Kong futures and -BERNE R BERL 64,764 15.8% 60,593 22.2% 6.9%
option brokerage
- Global futures brokerage - REHELLRL 43,911 10.7% 24,633 9.0% 78.3%
- Bullion trading -REERS 420 0.1% - - -
- Stock options brokerage - BREHELLD 4,493 1.0% 3,426 1.3% 31.1%
- IPO brokerage -BRARABELL 10,471 2.6% 3,617 1.3% 189.5%
Interest income from FREENSKA 107,294 26.1% 55,883 20.4% 92.0%
margin financing
Interest income IPO financing ~ BHAXAREEHME N SWA 9,672 2.4% 1,206 0.4% 702.0%
Total turnover RERE 410,380 100.0% 273,281 100.0% 50.2%
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Turnover from Main Businesses of the Group

REFAGEEEITEXB CEXRE
HK$’'000
FET
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Year ended 31 March 2014
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Year ended 31 March 2013
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Securities Hong Kong Global Interest income
t;Jro\k’eriage futures and futures from margin
BAHER options brokerage  brokerage financing
BEEHER IRIKENE FREVE
i S e FEUA
. Securities brokerage . BHRL
The Group’s commission income from securities brokerage AEBRAFEZBLFLLASWALS
for the Year was HK$169.4 million (2013: HK$123.9 16948 BB T (ZE—=F 123988
million), increased 36.7% over the Prior Year and accounted BIL) B EFEEMN36.7%  (HREERE
for 41.3% (2013: 45.4%) of the total turnover. During 413% (ZF— =% :145.4%) - FREZ
the Year, the Stock Exchange recorded a transaction Fres Sk X £ 2815045088 T (ZE—=
value of HK$15,045.0 billion (2013: HK$13,832.3 billion), F :138,323188 L) - ALERAS.8% °
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately BEME AEBBHELEF 2RRE
8.8%. In comparison, the Group not only significantly RENART  MEANTIEETFFFER -

outperformed the market in terms of securities brokerage,
but also recorded growth in market share during the Year.
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Commission Income from Securities Brokerage of

After the launch of the unprecedented “Installment Margin
and “BS Pre-IPO Trading Centre”
Group also introduced preferential scheme for subscription

Scheme” last year, the
of iBond, a government bond, and RMB government bonds,
which, being well-received in the market, spurred the rapid
growth of new accounts and generated recurring revenue
for the Group. To lay a solid foundation for the penetration
into the international market, the Group will continue, as
always, to vigorously explore business opportunities arising
from RMB-based financial products.
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Hong Kong futures and options brokerage

The Group’s commission income from Hong Kong futures
and options brokerage for the Year was HK$64.8 million
(2013: HK$60.6 million), representing an increase of 6.9%
over the Prior Year, and accounted for 15.8% (2013:
22.2%) of the total turnover.

Year ended 31 March
HE=A=1+—HILFE
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Global futures brokerage

The global markets remained volatile. As investors traded
global futures for the purpose of hedging their exposures
to risks, trading activities became more active and resulted
in positive impact on the Group’s global futures trading
as well as steady growth in the number of customers. The
commission income from global futures brokerage for the
Year increased a remarkable 78.3% over the Prior Year
to HK$43.9 million (2013: HK$24.6 million),
10.7% (2013: 9.0%) of the total turnover.

representing

Bullion trading

The Group commenced bullion trading services officially
in July 2013. Income from bullion trading of HK$420,000,
representing 0.1% of total turnover, was recorded during
the Year.

Stock options brokerage

During the Year, the Group recorded a commission income
of HK$4.5 million for the Year (2013: HK$3.4 million) from
stock option brokerage, accounting for 1.0% (2013: 1.3%)
of the total turnover. As stock options are highly leveraged
investment products, the Group ensures proper risk
management by closely monitoring the margin levels of the
stock option accounts and making adjustments according to
market situations.

Margin financing

During the Year, the Group’s interest income from margin
financing was HK$107.3 million (2013: HK$55.9 million),
representing a significant increase of 92.0% over the
and accounted for 26.1% (2013: 20.4%) of
the total turnover. The Group’s average monthly margin

Prior Year,

financing amount increased substantially by 95.6% from
approximately HK$1,350.0 million for the Prior Year to
approximately HK$2,641.0 million for the Year. The Group
has always been committed to providing customers with
competitive margin ratios, such that the customers can
enjoy greater flexibility of liquidity and more customers will
be attracted to trade securities on margin.

The Group has implemented effective credit control
procedures. Despite the substantial growth in the amount
of margin financing, the Group did not record any bad debt
in the past few years.
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VII. IPO brokerage and IPO financing

Under the volatile market conditions during the Year, the
performance of the IPO market was far from outstanding.
Nevertheless, the investor sentiments on subscription
remained high. The Group’'s interest income from IPO
financing increased by 702.0% over the Prior Year to
HK$9.7 million (2013: HK$1.2 million), while commission
income from IPO brokerage was HK$10.5 million (2013:
HK$3.6 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
189.5%.

OPERATING EXPENSES AND NET PROFIT
MARGIN

While the Group’s turnover for the Year recorded a significant
increase of more than 50% over the Prior Year under the Group’s
aggressive business expansion, relevant operating costs such
as finance costs, handling and settlement expenses increased
moderately by only 29.6% to HK$290.5 million for the Year
(2013: HK$224.2 million). The Group has put in place effective
costs control measures, achieving a net profit margin of 40.6%
(2013: 33.7%).

VI. BRAHERELKLCRERLAHERERE

FA - XMABEBFE FREBANLKE
R EREERBRILBEL A&
EE A HAEERENBBARLEFE L
F702.0%ZE9.788EBL(ZTE—=F 1.2
BEBL)  MEBXAHABRELLEBAE
BRKRAI0EEBAL(ZE—=F:3.68
BATT)  RFELF189.5%
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2005EEBATL(ZE—=F 122428588 7T) °
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Increment/
2014 2013 (decrement)
—E—-F —E—=F #m/ORd)
HK$' 000 HK$'000 %

TET FEL
Staff cost 8 TRA 94,366 85,079 10.9%
Depreciation e 15,499 12,857 20.5%
Finance cost BA 7 A AR 45,327 16,807 169.7%
Advertising and promotion expenses BEREBRXZ 8,895 7,892 12.7%
Handling and settlement expenses FEEREEER 28,464 22,243 28.0%
Information and communication expenses A EkBAAX 23,046 21,037 9.5%
Rentals, rates and building management fee & - ZMEEFEHRE 45,147 36,574 23.4%
Legal and professional fees FEENEXER 1,716 3,007 (42.9%)
Miscellaneous expenses FEIER X 28,018 18,703 49.8%
290,478 224,199 29.6%
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FUTURE PLANS

Over the past year, the Group took initiatives to tap into
the mainland China market and conducted studies on the
establishment of consultation centre in the mainland to promote
its business. The China Securities Regulatory Commission and
the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong jointly
announced the introduction of “Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock
Connect” which will be launched formally in the second half of
2014. This will not only help promote the integration of the stock
markets in Shanghai and Hong Kong, enhance the attractiveness
of the two markets to international investors, consolidate Hong
Kong’s position as an offshore Renminbi Centre, and improve
the overall efficiency of the Hong Kong securities market, but
will also solidify and strengthen Hong Kong's leading position
in the industry as an international financial centre. As one of
the leading local securities financial groups in Hong Kong, the
Group is reputable in the active development of diversified
products and its service quality. Looking into the future, the
Group will devote more resources to accelerate the development
of business in mainland China, expand its scale of operation for
more customers, actively promote the bullion trading platform
and after-hour futures trading, recruit professionals for the
development of the mainland market, and launch new services to
meet market demands from time to time. Meanwhile, the Group
will also launch vigorous promotion programs through online
platform to capture both local and mainland customers. The
Group will strive to take advantage of the unlimited development
opportunities for business expansion.

On the basis of prudent expansion, the Group will actively
diversify and optimize expansion plans, with an aim to further
increase its market share and provide better value-added services
to the customers.

Increase market share

The Group is optimistic about Hong Kong’'s economic prospect,
and believes that there are still a lot of development potential in
the current market. With this in mind, the Group has aggressively
increased the number of branches in recent years. Potential
districts were identified for the set up of new branches and
the branch network was optimized. The Group will consider a
further increase of the number of branches at suitable locations.
The objective is to extend the branch network to cover all prime
districts in Hong Kong and further consolidate the Group’s

position in the Hong Kong securities market.
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The Group currently operates an extensive branch network of 17
branches in Hong Kong (including the head office in Central), 13
of which are selected branches operating seven days a week. The
Group has recorded a sharp surge in the number of customers
within just a few years.

The Group is actively expanding its business and building its
presence, and gradually exploring the international business area
through the introduction of diversified and up-to-date investment
products to the global market and the uplifting of professionalism
to cater for the ever-changing capital market. As China has
become an important player in the international economy,
the Group is committed to developing the mainland China
market and allocating more resources to capture the mainland
customers, with an aim to generate significant income for the
Group.

In respect of the development of the mainland market, the
Group will leverage on the “Bright Smart Finance Channel” (2
A B4 &) as a flagship promotional tool and strengthen its
marketing efforts. The Group’s celebrity stock commentator,
Mr. Kwok Sze Chi (Executive Director and Marketing Director of
the Group) will conduct seminars regularly in mainland China,
in which exchanges between the Group and mainland investors
are promoted and the latest information and news of the Hong
Kong stock market are shared. Also, the Group offers one-stop
financial services to the mainland investors through its powerful
and robust online trading platform. Coupled with its favorable
commission policy, it is expected that more customers from
mainland China will be captured.

In addition, the Group was very proud to be able to stand
out from a number of participating securities dealers and was
honored as one of the “Largest RMB Currency Futures Traders By
Volume” by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEx),
which again demonstrated the Group’s capability and leadership
in the industry. The Group would like to see the introduction
of more RMB futures products by HKEx so that the Group can
expand its scope of service and broaden its revenue sources.
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Diversification of product portfolio

The Group is committed to developing diversified financial
With the multiple
price quotation system for bullion trading introduced to Hong

products to enhance its competitiveness.

Kong last year, the order-placing platform was improved and
optimized. The customers are now provided with a highly
transparent bullion trading service which is fair, just and open.
Although the market is flooded with external uncertainties,
the Group will remain committed to exploring new business
opportunities, studying and introducing more financial products
and services at the right times. These include global stock trading,
foreign exchange trading, asset management, underwriting and
placing of new shares, and products of London Metals Exchange
(LME), amongst other.

24-hour online trading

Online trading has already become a trend in investment. The
Group, as an early mover, has taken the opportunity to develop
its services around the core of online trading. With the second
phase of trading hour extension in effect, the Group’s brand new
website offers 24-hour, around the clock, online trading platform
and investment information. The Group particularly favours the
business opportunities of online trading through smart phones.
Through internet and mobile network, the customer can enjoy
one-stop online interactive investment experience that is secure,
safe and convenient, anytime and anywhere.

Bright Smart Finance Channel

The “Bright Smart Finance Channel”, an online channel of the
Group, has been well received by customers and the public
since its inception in 2012. In early 2014, the Group planned to
upgrade the online channel “Bright Smart Finance Channel” by
adding a number of new elements, so that the customers are
provided with the most comprehensive and up-to-date global
investment information and real time news, and will be able to
maximize the growth potential of their asset values by making

informed and sensible investment decisions.
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CONCLUSION

Through active and aggressive business promotion and expansion
strategies during the Year, the Group was successful in achieving
continuous growth in business. With Chow Tai Fook becoming
the second largest shareholder of the Company by way of placing
during the Year, the Group now enjoys strong competitive
advantage, and is poised to becoming the leading local securities
and financial group in Hong Kong.

Looking ahead, with the development of increasingly diversified
businesses and the constant introduction of financial products,
the Group will strive to uplift competitiveness by providing the
customers with one-stop financial services. Customer base will
be solidified through capturing of market share from aggressive
branch network expansion, and additional sources of revenue
will be introduced by further development of different types of
financial products.

The Group has been improving its overall profitability and
operating efficiency by consistently taking advantage of its
superior and meticulously planned business strategies. Under the
leadership of the chairman and the management team, the Group
has been able to maintain growth in face of the rapidly changing
financial market, and continue to generate satisfactory returns for
the shareholders. The Company is on its way to its objective of
becoming the most established and prominent securities dealer in
the country.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group's operations were financed by shareholders’ equity,
cash generated from operation and bank borrowings.

The Group maintained a strong cash position with total bank
deposits, bank balances and cash amounted to HK$370.4
million as at 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$381.5 million). The
Group had total bank borrowings of HK$2,776.0 million as
at 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$1,690.0 million) which bore
interest primarily at floating rates. The bank borrowings were
primarily collateralised by its margin clients’securities pledged
to the Group. As at 31 March 2014, unutilised banking facilities
amounted to HK$1,337.0 million (2013: HK$983.0 million). The
Group’s gearing ratio (total bank borrowings divided by the
total shareholders’ equity), was 276.4% (2013: 223.1%). As at
31 March 2014, the net current assets of the Group increased
by 35.9% to HK$911.3 million (2013: HK$670.6 million). The
Group’s current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities)
as at 31 March 2014 was 1.25 times (2013: 1.28 times). The
Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions. For the licensed subsidiaries, the Group ensures each
of the subsidiaries maintain a liquidity level adequate to support
the level of activities with a sufficient buffer to accommodate
increases in liquidity requirements arising from potential increases
in the level of business activities. During the Year, all the licensed
subsidiaries have complied with the liquidity requirements under
the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR").

CHARGES ON ASSETS

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31 March
2014 and 2013.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, corporate guarantees
provided by the Company in respect of banking facilities granted
by authorised institutions to its subsidiaries engaging in securities
and futures broking amounted to HK$2,073.0 million (2013:
HK$993.0 million). As at 31 March 2014, the subsidiaries of the
Company has utilised HK$1,153.0 million of these aggregate
banking facility (2013: HK$710.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis ‘E

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors do not
consider it probable a claim will be made against the Group
under any of the guarantees. The Group has not recognised any
deferred income in respect of the guarantees as their fair value
cannot be reliably measured and the transaction price was nil.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS AND
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2014 were
approximately HK$72.0 million (2013: HK$101.1 million). The
capital commitments as at 31 March 2014 were approximately
HK$0.6 million (2013: HK$8.4 million).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had a work force of 255
Staff costs,
Directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$84.8
million for the Year (2013: HK$77.4 million).
remuneration policy aims to offer competitive remuneration

employees (2013: 245 employees). excluding

The Group's

packages to recruit, retain and motivate competent employees.
The Group believes the remuneration packages are reasonable
and competitive and in line with market trends. The Group has
put in place a share option scheme and a bonus scheme for
its executives and employees in a bid to provide a competitive
remuneration package for the Group’s long term growth and
development. The Group also provides appropriate training and
development programmes to its employees to enhance the staff’s
work ability and personal effectiveness.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the Year, the Group did not make any significant

acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries.

LITIGATION

As at 31 March 2014 and up to the date of this announcement,
the Group was not involved in any litigation of significance.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts due
from clients, brokers and clearing houses. The Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to the credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of amounts due from clients, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all clients (including cash and
margin clients). Cash clients are required to place deposits as
prescribed in the Group’s credit policy before execution of any
purchase transactions. Receivables due from cash clients are due
within the settlement period commonly adopted in the relevant
market practices, which is usually within a few days from the
trade date. Because of the prescribed deposit requirements
and the short settlement period involved, the credit risk arising
from the amounts due from cash clients is considered low. The
Group normally obtains liquid securities and/or cash deposits as
collateral for providing margin financing to its clients. Margin
loans due from margin clients are repayable on demand. For
commodities and futures brokerage, an initial margin is required
prior to opening transaction. Market conditions and adequacy of
securities collateral and margin deposits of each margin account
and futures account are monitored by the management on a
daily basis. Margin calls and forced liquidation are made where
necessary.

In respect of amounts receivable from brokers and clearing
houses, credit risks are considered low as the Group normally
enters into transactions with brokers and clearing houses which
are registered with regulatory bodies and enjoy sound reputation
in the industry.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk as
credits are granted to a large population of clients.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis ‘E

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the raising of loans
to cover expected cash demands, and to ensure compliance
with FRR. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirement and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

Interest rate risk

The Group charges interest on its margin clients on the basis
of its cost of funding plus a mark-up. Financial assets (such as
margin loans and deposits with banks) and financial liabilities
(such as bank loans and loan from a related company) are
primarily at floating rates. The Group's income and operating
cash flows are not subject to significant interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily arising from
financial instruments that are denominated in United States
dollars ("USD"), Renminbi (“"RMB”) and Singapore dollars
("SGD"). As the Hong Kong dollar (“HKD") is pegged to the
USD, the Group considers the risk of movements in exchange
rates between the HKD and the USD is insignificant. In respect of
financial instruments denominated in other currencies, the Group
ensures that the net exposure is kept at an acceptable level by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary
to address short-term imbalances. The management monitors all
the foreign currency positions on a daily basis.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management €= M &R EEE 7 F

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. YIP Mow Lum
Executive Director & Chairman

(Appointed as a director on 4 August 2009 and elected as the
chairman on 4 August 2010)

Aged 62, is the founder, the Chairman of the Board and the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Yip is also the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is responsible for
the formulation of corporate strategies, overseeing operations
and the overall steering of the Group’s management. Mr. Yip has
solid experience in brokerage industry and investment and has
over 20 years’ management experience in securities and futures
brokerage. He is a director of Bright Smart Asset Management
Limited (“Bright Smart Asset Management”), Bright Smart Forex
Limited (”Bright Smart Forex”), Bright Smart Global Bullion
Limited (“Bright Smart Global Bullion”), Bright Smart Futures
& Commodities Company Limited (“Bright Smart Futures”) and
Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.) Limited (“Bright
Smart Securities”). Mr. Yip is a responsible officer recognized by
the Securities & Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC") for
engaging in the Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts) regulated
activity. He is the sole director of New Charming Holdings
Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company and the
uncle of Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson, one of the Executive
Directors of the Company and the father of Ms. Yip Wing Yan,
Jacquelyn, the Managing Director of the Group. Mr. Yip is also
the controlling shareholder, the chairman and a non-executive
director of Magnum Entertainment Group Holdings Limited (a
listed company in Hong Kong).

Mr. CHAN Kai Fung
FExecutive Director & Chief Fxecutive Officer

(Appointed as a director on 4 August 2009 and designated as an
executive director on 4 August 2010)

Aged 47, is an Executive Director and a Chief Executive Officer
with overall responsibility for the business and operations of the
Group. Mr. Chan has over 20 years’ management experience in
securities and futures businesses, and specialized in IPO financing
project. He is also a director of Bright Smart Asset Management,
Bright Smart Forex, Bright Smart Global Bullion, Bright Smart
Futures and Bright Smart Securities. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Chan was a director of Coin Fall Limited (a securities brokerage
company) and Lucky Man Properties Limited as well as the
administration manager of Maxview Enterprises Limited.
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Mr. KWOK Sze Chi,
Executive Director & Marketing Director

(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 59, celebrity stock commentator, an Executive Director
of the Company and the Marketing Director of the Group
and the chief program consultant for “Bright Smart Financial
Channel” since 2010 with responsibilities for the arrangement
and management of the programs on the whole channel, the
management of analysts team as well as the marketing and
business development. Mr. Kwok has over 30 years’ experience in
securities and futures businesses and has expertise in corporate
management, marketing strategy and securities analysis. Mr.
Kwok is also a director of Bright Smart Asset Management, an
independent non-executive director of Victory City International
Holdings Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong) and has been
a director of The Institute of Securities Dealers Limited and a
vice chairman of The Hong Kong Institute of Financial Analysts
and Professional Commentators Limited since 2001 and 2004
respectively. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kwok has held senior
positions in Peace Town Securities Limited and Cheerful Securities
Limited. He is a responsible officer recognized by the SFC for
engaging in the Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising
on securities), Type 7 (providing automated trading services)
and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities. He is also a
representative recognized by the SFC for engaging in the Type 2
(dealing in futures contracts) regulated activity.

Mr. CHAN Wing Shing Wilson
Executive Director & Dealing Director

(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 49, is an Executive Director of the Company and the
Dealing Director of the Group in charge of the daily dealing
operations of Bright Smart Securities and Bright Smart Futures.
Mr. Chan is also a director of Bright Smart Securities and Bright
Smart Futures. He has over 15 years’ experience in securities and
futures businesses and is a responsible officer recognized by the
SFC for engaging in the Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2
(dealing in futures contracts), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type
5 (advising on futures contracts) and Type 7 (providing automated
trading services) regulated activities. Mr. Chan is the nephew
of Mr. Yip, the founder, the Chairman of the Board and the
controlling shareholder of the Company and the cousin of Ms.
Yip Wing Yan, Jacquelyn, the Managing Director of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. YU Yun Kong

Independent Non-executive Director

(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 48, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr.
Yu is a practising certified public accountant with over 20 years’
experience in public accounting practice. He is a fellow member
of both the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and also
an associate member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Mr. SZETO Wai Sun
Independent Non-executive Director

(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 55, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Szeto holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Laws (Hons) and a Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws from The University of Hong Kong, and obtained the
Professional Certificate in Chinese Civil & Commercial Law, a
course jointly organised by Tsinghua University in the PRC and the
School of Professional and Continuing Education of The University
of Hong Kong in 2002. Mr. Szeto was admitted as a solicitor
in Hong Kong in 1985 and worked in a number of law firms in
Hong Kong including Edmund Cheung & Co. and Y.T. Chan &
Co., before founding his own firm W.S. Szeto & Lee, Solicitors
(now known as Sun Lawyers) in 2003. He remains the Senior
Partner of Sun Lawyers.

Mr. LING Kwok Fai Joseph
Independent Non-executive Director

(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 58, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Ling has over 18
years' experience in accounting, finance and administration and
has been a director and the company secretary of a charitable
organisation since 2004. Mr. Ling joined Midland Realty
(Holdings) Limited in 1990 and was the executive director when
he left the company in 1997. Prior to that, he was a controller of
Hong Kong Telephone Company Limited and has also worked at
Chase Manhattan Bank and the First National Bank of Boston in
accounting field. Mr. Ling is an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong
Institute of Company Secretaries.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Ms. YIP Wing Yan, Jacquelyn

Managing Director

(Joined the Group in May 2012)

Aged 33, is the Managing Director of the Group with the
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s daily internal operation
and devising key strategies for future development plan. Lead,
coordinate and give advices to various departments to provide
optimum supports and quality services. She holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Business Administration (major in Accountancy) from
City University of Hong Kong. Ms. Yip is the daughter of Mr.
Yip, the founder, the Chairman of the Board and the controlling
shareholder of the Company and the cousin of Mr. Chan Wing
Shing, Wilson, one of the Executive Directors of the Company.

Ms. LI Wan Mei
Chief Financial Officer

(Joined the Group in November 2008)

Aged 30, is the Chief Financial Officer in charge of the overall
financial and accounting management of the Group. Ms. Li
has over 8 years’ accounting experience, including three years’
experience gained in PricewaterhouseCoopers. She holds a
Bachelor’s Degree (first class honours) in Business Administration
from the Lingnan University and is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. HUI Yik Bun, Edmond
Sales Director

(Joined the Group in May 2010)

Aged 40, is the Sales Director of the Company, has over 20
years of experience in securities and futures businesses, and has
worked in departments related to securities and futures in a
number of firms. Mr. Hui has expertise in brokerage operation,
sales management and market operation of securities and futures
businesses, particularly with over 10 years' experience in frontline
branch management. Prior to this existing position, Mr. Hui served
as Assistant Sales Director managing all sales and customer services
department and supervising over 150 officers. Mr. Hui is also a
representative recognized by the SFC for engaging in the Type
1 (dealing in securities) and Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts)
regulated activities.
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Mr. CHUNG Ka Keung
IT Manager
(Joined the Group in December 2013)

Aged 43,
responsibilities for the formulation of information technology

is the Head of the Information Technology with the

strategy as well as administration and development of the
information technology system of the Group. Mr. Chung holds a
bachelor’'s degree (Highest Honours) in Computer Science from
Carleton University, Canada and a master’'s degree in Science
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has over 20 years’
experience in design and development of system. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Chung was the chief technology officer of Ayers
Solutions Limited where he was responsible for developing its
flagship software product — Ayers GTS online securities/futures
trading system.

Mr. CHAN Kwan Pak
Company Secretary

(2 February 2011-28 May 2012;
2012)

re-appointed on 16 October

Aged 57, is a member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
experience in company secretarial practices in respect of listed

Chan has extensive

companies.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to ensuring high standards of corporate
governance practices and believes that they are essential for
maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence. The Board
reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time
in order to meet public and shareholders’ expectations and to
comply with increasingly stringent regulatory requirements,
as well as to fulfill its commitment for excellence in corporate
governance.

The Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) issued by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
sets out two levels of corporate governance practices, namely,
mandatory code provisions that listed companies must comply
with or explain their non-compliance; and recommended best
practices that listed companies are encouraged to comply with
but need not disclose any non-compliance. Throughout the year
ended 31 March 2014, the Company has fully complied with the

mandatory code provisions of the CG Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to formulate the
Company’'s long-term corporate strategy, oversee the
management of the Group, evaluate the performance of the
Group and assess the achievement of targets periodically set by
the Board. In addition, the Board has established three Board
Committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee; and has delegated
to these Board Committees various responsibilities as set out in
the irrespective terms of reference.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises seven Directors, of whom more than one-
third are non-executive and independent of the management.
The Board is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the Group’s businesses. As at 31 March
2014, four of the Directors are executive, namely, Mr. Yip Mow
Lum (Chairman), Mr. Chan Kai Fung (CEO), Mr. Kwok Sze Chi
and Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson; and three of the Directors are
independent non-executive, namely, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto
Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. The biographical details
of the Directors are set out in the “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” section of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board at all times
met the minimum requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors, and complied with the requirement that these
should include one such director with appropriate professional
qualifications of accounting or related financial management
expertise. Both Mr. Yu Yun Kong and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph
have the appropriate professional qualifications and experience
in the financial matters required. Pursuant to the requirement in
the Listing Rules, the Company has received written confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors of his
independence from the Company.

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson is a nephew of Mr. Yip Mow Lum.
Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Mr. Chan Kai Fung, Mr. Kwok Sze Chi and Mr.
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson are directors of a subsidiary or several
subsidiaries of the Company. Save as disclosed above, there are
no other relationships between the Board members, including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships.

The Company has arranged for Directors’ Liability Insurance Policy
for indemnifying their liabilities arising from corporate activities.
The coverage and the amount insured under such policy are
reviewed annually by the Company.
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BOARD PRACTICES

The Board holds at least four regular meetings each year at
approximately quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business
development, operations and financial performance. Notice of
at least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular Board
meetings. All regular Board meetings adhere to a formal agenda
in which a schedule of matters is addressed to the Board. All
Directors have access to the Board papers and related materials,
and are provided with adequate information which enables the
Board to make informed decisions on the matters to be discussed
and considered at the Board meetings. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by any Director at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice. To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors
are free to have access to the management for enquiries and
to obtain further information, when required, and the Directors
can obtain independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, four full Board meetings
and two general meetings, ie. the annual general meeting
("AGM") and an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM"), were
held. Details of the attendance of the Directors to the Board
meetings and general meetings are as follows:
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Number of Number of
full Board general
Meetings Attendance meetings Attendance
attended rate attended rate
HEZREES HERRAS
Name of Director B8 BEZIRH HE = ZIRE HE =
Executive Directors: HITES -
Mr. YIP Mow Lum BERMEAE 4/4 100% 12 50%
Mr. CHAN Kai Fung PR BRI %2 &= 4/4 100% 2/2 100%
Mr. KWOK Sze Chi FER A 4/4 100% 2/2 100%
Mr. CHAN Wing Shing, Wilson  BRk & % 4 4/4 100% 2/2 100%
Independent Non-executive MBI FHITEE:
Directors:
Mr. YU Yun Kong REM & 4/4 100% 2/2 100%
Mr. SZETO Wai Sun AITEHERT SR 4/4 100% 2/2 100%
Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph % B 9 S A 4/4 100% 2/2 100%
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous

Corporate Governance Report

professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. During the year ended 31 March 2014,
the Company arranged for the Directors a seminar on the update
of the Listing Rules and the Companies Ordinance conducted
by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. As part of an ongoing
process of directors’ training, the Directors are updated with
latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time to ensure
compliance of the same by all Directors.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION BY DIRECTORS

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as practicable in
all other cases, an agenda and accompanying Board papers are
sent in full to all Directors in a timely manner. Notice of at least
14 days is given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors
an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings and Board
committee meetings, reasonable notice is given.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers, minutes
and related materials at all times. All Directors have been
provided, on a monthly basis, with the Group’s management
information updates to keep them informed of the Group's
affairs and facilitate them to discharge their duties under the

Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company provides all
Directors with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
financial position and prospects.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial fixed term of three
years with effect from 25 August 2010, which will automatically
be renewable for one successive year, and will continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving the
other prior notice in writing (not less than three months’ notice
for Mr. Yip Mow Lum and Mr. Chan Kai Fung; and not less than
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson and

Mr. Kwok Sze Chi). They are subject to retirement from office

twelve months’ notice for Mr.
by rotation at annual general meetings in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company (”Articles of Association”).

CG Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election.
Each of the three Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company, namely, Mr. Yu Yu Kong, Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph
and Mr. Szeto Wai Sun have renewed their appointments for a
fixed term of one year with effect from 25 August 2013, which
will automatically be renewable for one successive year, and
will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either
the Company or any of the three Independent Non-executive
Directors by giving the other party a three months’ prior notice
in writing. All three Independent Non-executive Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-election
at the annual general meetings of the Company according to the
provisions of the Articles of Association.

According to the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the current Directors, or
if there are not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, should retire from office
by rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election. Further, any Director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board should
hold office only until the first general meeting of the Company
after his appointment and shall be subject to re-election at such
meeting.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All
the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2014.

COMPLIANCE MANUAL

To ensure the Company operates according to the highest
standards of ethical conduct and professional competence, all
Directors, management and staff are required to strictly follow
the Company’s compliance manual (“Compliance Manual”)
which places them under specific obligations as to the ethics
and principles by which the Company’s business is conducted.
With reference to the applicable regulatory guidelines and other
industry best practices, the Compliance Manual sets out ethical
standards and values on topics such as staff dealing in securities,
anti-money laundering and personal benefits.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and CEO should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. To balance power and authority, Mr. Yip Mow
Lum acts as the Chairman of the Company, and Mr. Chan Kai
Fung acts as the CEO of the Company.

Their respective responsibilities are clearly established. The
Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board properly
discharges its responsibilities and conforms to good corporate
governance practices and procedures. In addition, as the
Chairman of the Board, he is also responsible for ensuring that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
and that all Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner. The CEO is responsible for day-
to-day management of the Group’s business, including the
implementation of significant strategies formulated by the Board.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu
Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph,
none of whom are involved in the day-to-day management of
the Company. Mr. Yu Yun Kong is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Company’s
financial information (including the Company’s financial
statements, annual reports, interim reports and major comments
on financial reporting contained in the financial statements
and reports), examining and studying the Company’s financial
reporting system and procedures for internal supervision and
control, and making recommendations to the Board on matters
regarding the appointment of external auditors and the fixing of
the audit fee, etc.

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the year
ended 31 March 2014 included the review and, where applicable,

approval of:

o the audited financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2013;

o the interim financial statements of the Company for the six
months ended 30 September 2013; and

o the internal control system.

Two Audit Committee meetings were held during the year ended
31 March 2014. Attendance records of relevant Directors are set
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out as follows: S
Number of
meetings attended Attendance rate
Name of Director EEHR HEEBEZRE =R
Mr. YU Yun Kong (Chairman) REM LA (FE) 2/2 100%
Mr. SZETO Wai Sun RITE#EFT SR 2/2 100%
Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph % B9 ST A 2/2 100%

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
KPMG, Certified Public Accountants (“KPMG"), be nominated for
re-appointment as the external auditor of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises four members, including
Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board, together with three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Yun Kong,
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. Mr. Yip Mow
Lum is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee was established to make
recommendations for all appointments, re-designations and
reappointments of Directors to the Board. It is also responsible
for determining the independence of each Independent Non-
executive Director and conducting a formal assessment on the
effectiveness of the Board as a whole, as well as determining the
contribution of each Director to the effectiveness of the Board. In
evaluating the Board’s performance, the Nomination Committee
considers a number of factors, including appropriate professional
knowledge and industry experience, personal ethics, integrity
and personal skills, as well as time commitments of members.
The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year to review
the structure, size and composition of the existing Board, and
to recommend to the Board the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board

members and senior staff of the Company.

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the
year ended 31 March 2014 included the review and, where
applicable, approval of composition of the Board and its
committees.

One Nomination Committee meeting was held during the year
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ended 31 March 2014. Attendance records of relevant Directors HFEXARK — &% - ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ’ﬂﬁf%ﬁ’i‘]ﬁﬂ
are set out as follows: T
Number of
meetings attended Attendance rate
Name of Director BENS HEEBEZRE i =R
Mr. YIP Mow Lum (Chairman) EEMNEE(EE) 11 100%
Mr. YU Yun Kong RENM A& 1/1 100%
Mr. SZETO Wai Sun AIE#ERT A 1/1 100%
Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph % B 9 S A 1/1 100%
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four members,
namely, Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board, and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr.
Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. Mr. Yu Yun Kong
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and senior management, approving
the remuneration, determining the remuneration packages
of all Directors and senior management and approving
the compensation to Directors and senior management on
termination or dismissal, provided that no Director was involved
in deciding his own remuneration.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the year
ended 31 March 2014 are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements in this annual report. The emolument policy of
the employees of the Group is setup on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence, as well as market trend.
The Directors’ emoluments are determined with reference
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and the prevailing market rates. The work performed by the
Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31 March
2014 included the review and, where applicable, approval
of remuneration scheme of the Group; and revision of the

remuneration of all Directors.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the year
ended 31 March 2014. Attendance records of relevant Directors
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are set out as follows: ™~
Number of

meetings attended Attendance rate
Name of Director BEEHE HEEBEZRE =R
Mr. YU Yun Kong (Chairman) REIM LA (EE) 1/1 100%
Mr. YIP Mow Lum BERMEAE 1/1 100%
Mr. SZETO Wai Sun AE#E T A& 1/1 100%
Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph BB A 171 100%
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
financial statements for each financial period, which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company, and
of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014, the
Board has selected suitable accounting policies and has applied
them consistently, adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards
which are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial
statements, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, and has prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Kwan Pak, the Company Secretary, is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered and Certified Accountants
and a member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. He reports to Mr. Chan Kai Fung, CEO and
Executive Director, and assists the Board in functioning effectively
and efficiently. All the Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary at any time in relation to their
duties and operation of the Board. During the year ended 31
March 2014, he undertook not less than 15 hours of professional
training to update his skill and knowledge.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

During the year ended 31 March 2014, KPMG, the external
auditor of the Group, provided the following services to the
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Group:

HK$'000
Service rendered Frig 4 AR 75 FETT
Audit services BEZRE
Annual audit FEEZ 1,198
Non-audit services (FEEZ
Interim review AR ER 2R ) 210
Taxation service T 7% R 7% 38
Total BET 1,446
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for safeguarding the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets as well as for achieving the
objectives of the Group. Thus, a comprehensive internal control
system is established and implemented throughout the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2014 to meet the Group’s
particular needs and the risks to which it is exposed, and by its
nature can only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance
against misstatement or loss.

The Board confirms that it has reviewed the effectiveness of the
system of internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 March 2014 and that it considers that
the system is reasonably effective and adequate. The review
covered all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls and the risk management function, as well as
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders are entitled to convene an extraordinary general
meeting and propose a person for election as a director. Please
see the detailed procedures as follows:

e the way in which shareholders can convene an
extraordinary general meeting:

Any shareholder(s) holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than 10% of the paid up capital of the
Company may request the Board of Directors to convene an
extraordinary general meeting. The requisition, duly signed
by the shareholder(s) concerned, must clearly state the
objects of the meeting and must be deposited at the head
office of the Company at 10/F, Wing On House, 71 Des
Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong. The Company
would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements in accordance with the requirements under
Article 64 of the Company’s Articles of Association once a
valid requisition is received.
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the procedure for Director’s nomination and . RREEBEESNERF:

election by shareholders:

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than
a retiring Director for election as a Director at a general
meeting, the shareholder should lodge at the head office of
the Company at 10/F, Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road
Central, Central, Hong Kong (a) a notice signed by such
shareholder (other than the proposed person) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the meeting of his/her intention to
propose such person for election; (b) a notice signed by the
proposed person indicating his/her willingness to be elected
together with the information as required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and (c) a written
consent by the proposed person for the publication of his/
her personal data.

The period during which the aforesaid notices may be given
within the period of not less than 7 days commencing
no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice
of the meeting appointed for such election and ending
no later than 7 days prior to the date of such meeting.
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The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements once valid notices are received.
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Shareholders are welcome to send in any written enquiries to
the Board for the attention of the Company Secretary by post
to the head office of the Company at 10/F, Wing On House, 71
Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong. The Company
Secretary would direct the enquiries received to appropriate
Board Member(s) or the Chairman of the Board Committee(s)
who is in charge of the areas of concern referred therein for
further handling. The Board, assisted by the Company Secretary,
would make its best efforts to ensure that all such enquiries are
addressed in a timely manner.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors’
relationship with the Company’s shareholders, the Company has
compiled a Shareholders Communication Policy and established
various channels of communication with its shareholders, such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press releases and
announcements of the latest development of the Company
in a timely manner. The annual general meetings provide an
opportunity for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
The Chairman and members of different Committees are available
to answer shareholders’ questions. Moreover, resolutions are
proposed at annual general meetings on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual Directors and
details of the proposed resolutions are set out in a circular.

The financial and other information relating to the Group
has been published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.bsgroup.com.hk).
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Directors’ Report
EERHS

The Board of Directors is pleased to present their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding,
while the principal activity of the Group is the provision of
financial services, including securities broking, margin financing,
commodities and futures broking and bullion trading.

ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

Details of the analysis of the Group’s turnover and profit for the
year contributed by operating segments are set out in note 12 to
the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 87 to 159.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profits attributable to shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) before dividend is HK$166,747,000 (2013:
HK$92,226,000) which have been transferred to reserves. Details
of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and note 24(a) to the financial statements respectively.

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors recommended a final dividend of HK4.50
cents per share, subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Thursday,
7 August 2014. If approved, the final dividend will be paid on
Thursday, 21 August 2014 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Members of the Company on Monday,
18 August 2014.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed, for the
purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the meeting, from Tuesday, 5 August 2014 to Thursday,
7 August 2014 (both days inclusive),
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to attend and vote

during which period no
at the meeting, shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration, not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 4 August 2014. The Annual General
Meeting of the Company will be held at 10:00 a.m. on Thursday,
7 August 2014.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO FINAL DIVIDEND

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed, for
the purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend, from Thursday, 14 August 2014 to
18 August 2014 (both days inclusive),
period no transfer of shares will be registered.

Monday, during which

In order to
qualify for the proposed final dividend, shareholders should
ensure that all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 13 August
2014. Shares of the Company will be traded ex-dividend as from

Tuesday, 12 August 2014.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 24(a) to the financial statements.

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Movements in the share premium and reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 24(a) to the financial
statements respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2014, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution to shareholders amounted to approximately
HK$363.8 million (2013: HK$280.7 million).

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to HK$276,000 (2013: HK$160,000).

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group are set out
in note 13 to the financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five years ended 31 March 2014 are set out in the “Five-
year Financial Summary” section on page 160 of this annual

report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the relevant laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

A 4 2K & 8
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
On 4 August 2010, the Company conditionally approved and

adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose

of enabling the Group to grant share options (the “Options”)

to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their

contribution to the Group. The major terms of the Scheme are set

out as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The participants included any employees (whether full time
or part time), executives and officers (including Executive
and Non-executive Directors), shareholders, suppliers,
customers, consultants, advisors, business or joint venture
partners, franchisees, contractors, agents or representatives
of any members of the Group;

The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all Options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at the Listing Date (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”)
provided that the Company may seek approval from its
shareholders in general meeting to refresh the Scheme
Mandate Limit to the extent not exceeding 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of the aforesaid shareholders’
approval. The Scheme Mandate Limited has been refreshed
after the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
annual general meeting held on 8 August 2013. After the
refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limited, the maximum
number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all Options to be granted under the Scheme
was 103,762,165 shares. However, the maximum number
of shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise
of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other options granted and yet
to be exercised under any other share option scheme shall
not exceed 30% of the Company’s issued share capital from
time to time;

No Options may be granted to any one person such that
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of Options granted and to be granted to that
person in any 12-month period up to the date of the latest
grant exceeds 1% of the Company's issued share capital
from time to time;
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(iv)

(vi)

There is no minimum period for which an Option must be
held before it can be exercised save as determined by the
Board of the Company and provided in the offer of grant of
Options;

Subject to the terms of the Scheme where any offer of
an Option is proposed to be made to any Director, Chief
Executive or Substantial Shareholder of the Company or
any of their respective associates, such offer must first be
approved by the Independent Non-executive Directors;
where any grant of Options to a Substantial Shareholder
or an Independent Non-executive Director, or any of the
irrespective associates, would result in the shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of all Options already granted
and to be granted (including Options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up
to and including the date of such grant:

° representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in
issue; and

° having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares at the date of each offer, in excess of
HK$5 million;

then such further grant of Options must be approved by
shareholders;

An offer of the grant of an Option shall remain open for
acceptance by the grantee for a period of 28 days from
the offer date. An Option shall have been accepted by the
grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
letter comprising acceptance of the offer of the Option
duly signed by the grantee together with a remittance in
favour of the Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for
the grant thereof is received by the Company on or before
30 days after the offer date. Such remittance shall in no
circumstances be refundable;

(iv)

(vi)
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FE SN - BORE AR R] AT A L BB

B A HIR

REBZFEGR  RMEMARRES =
BUTRABRTERRABES B ZEM
HBEALTEZZERZ ZEMBRE BARL
BYFPTEZTEEME  HATERR
KBUFPTEFIREFEEZEMAHE
AETREBEE $SBHEZALREBEER
HAE#EREARE(BRRLEHRER)
RITEMACER K ER 2 BRE (B
BT - B R EARITERRE) M2 %
TR FE#IT 2D -

e AHBBEETRNHZ01% K

o REFRHBAHBERMNZUTESE
BEBBSASET

A — B 2 B B MR RS BUCR L

RERHZBRER BIES A HEF28A
HEARARAZR EARBREZA
HR30B R 2B — A M A ARAL
AEZEBUERREZBREZR2 WM E
RIX N ARAR 2 RIBVBTTE SR BEAE
ZHREE AERECEARAZANE
HER e B FORAEEMIER T RRE

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2013/14



C—

Directors’ Report 2 =& &

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The Board shall not make an offer to grant any Option
under the Scheme after a price sensitive event has occurred
or a price sensitive matter has been the subject of a decision
until such price sensitive information has been announced
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. In
particular, no Option shall be granted on any day on which
the Company’s financial results are published and (a) during
the period of 60 days immediately preceding the publication
date of its annual results or, if shorter, the period from
the end of the relevant financial year up to the publication
date of the results; and (b) during the period of 30 days
immediately preceding the publication date of its quarterly
results (if any) and half-year results or, if shorter, the period
from the end of the relevant quarterly or half-year period up
to the publication date of the results;

The exercise price of an Option shall not be less than
whichever is the highest of:

. the nominal value of a share;

° the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date;
and

° the average closing price of a share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date;

The life of the Scheme is effective for 10 years from 25
August 2010.

Other particulars of the Scheme are set out in note 25 to the

financial statements.

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
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During the year ended 31 March 2014, 10,490,000 Options had HE_Z—NE=A=+—HILEE  BEEZ
been granted under the Scheme. 5T &1 1110,490,00017 % Az # -

The following table discloses details of the Company's TFTREBALNIES B TEE BRNMEASEH
outstanding Options held by the Directors, certain employees, #BEZAZIFEARAR R ZARITEERENEZ -
consultants and contractors of the Company under the Scheme Z—WE=A=+—HIt7EE&FHHE -
and its movement during the year ended 31 March 2014:

Options
Options Options held at
held at granted Options Options 31 March
1 April 2013 during exercised lapsed 2014
RZE-ZF the Year during during HWZE-D%
A-H KEER the Year theYear =fA=1-H Exercise Date of Exercise Vesting
kB2 Riiz AEERFTE KEERXN BE2 Price grant period  conditions
ERE ERE ZBRE ZBRE ERE k& RAAH T8 BRAH
HKS
BT
Executive Directors:
HnEs:
Mr. Chan Kai Fung - 500,000 (500,000) - - 0.98 2600612013 26/06/2013- Nil
REgRE -%2-= 25/0612016 B
ABHRE ZE-ZE
ARTTRBE
ZERF
~RTEA
Mr. Kwok Sze Chi 2,068,000 - (2,068,000) - - 0.67 13/1022011  1310/2011- Nil
BBtk ZE-F 12100013 &
tAtz8 -%3—-%&
tA+=R%
2k
TATZH
- 500,000 (500,000) - - 0.98 2606/2013  26/06/2013- Nil
ZE-ZE 2500612016 &
AATAH “%-zf
NATRAZ
ZE-RE
AATTRR
Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson 200,000 - (200,000) - - 0.67 13/10/2011 13/10/2011- Nil
Rk ZE--E 12100013 B
tAt= -2-—-*%
tAtZHZ
+A+ZH
- 400,000 (200,000) - 200,000 0.98 26/06/2013  26/06/2013- Nil
“%-=F 25/06/2016 &
ARTAE ZE-ZE
AATRAE
“ERE
ARTTEA
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Options

Options Options held at
held at granted Options Options 31 March

1 April 2013 during exercised lapsed 2014

RZE-=F the Year during duing H=E-R§
mA-A REER the Year theYear =A=1-8 Exercise Date of Exercise Vesting

KBz Riz REERTE AEERXN BEZ Price grant period  conditions
BRE BRE ZERE ZERE BRE ﬁﬁ% RAAH gL BRAN
HK
BT
Independent Non-
Executive Directors:
BUkidES:
Mr. Yu Yun Kong 688,644 - (688,644) - - 0.67 13/10/2011 13/10/2011- Nil
REBEE ZE-—F 12100013 i
tAtzR -—E--E
TAtzRZ
tA+ZH
- 100,000 - - 100,000 0.98 26/06/2013  26/06/2013- Nil
“E-ZF 25/06/2016 E
AATRE ZE-ZE
~ATRAE
2
~ATHA
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun 688,644 - (88,644) - - 0.67 13/102011 13/10/2011- Nil
BliE b ZE-—F 121102013 &
thtzR  -z7--%
TAT=ZHE
—%-=%
tAt+-E
- 100,000 - - 100,000 0.98 2600612013 26/06/2013- Nil
—F-= 25/06/2016 &
AATAR ZE-ZE
AATAAE
ZE-5F
AATERA
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph 688,644 - (688,644) - - 0.67 13/10/2011 13/10/2011- Nil
REREE ZE--F 12100013 &
tAt=p —E--f&
tht+z8%
“%-zf
TAtzH
- 100,000 - - 100,000 0.98 2600612013 26/06/2013- Nil
“E-CF 25/06/2016 E
AAtAE ZE-cE
~ATARE
ZE-5F
~ATHA
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Options

Options Options held at
held at granted Options Options 31 March

1 April 2013 during exercised lapsed 2014

RZE-=F the Year during duing H=E-R§
B-A REER the Year theYear =A=1-8 Exercise Date of Exercise Vesting

KBz Riz REERTE AEERXN BEZ Price grant period  conditions
BhE BhE ZERE ZERE BhE ﬁﬁi REBH R BRAL
HK
/%TE
Employees 3,154,240 - (3,064,040) (90,200) - 0.67 13/10/2011 13/10/2011- Nil
£ ZE-—F 12100013 &
tEtz@ %%
TAT=HE
“5-=F
TATZH
- 8,290,000 (4,660,000) (260,000) 3,370,000 0.98 26/06/2013  26/06/2013- Nil
“E-ZF 250062016 i
AATAH “F-=
AATREZ
“E-0F
AAtERE
Consultants and 1,034,000 - (1,034,000) - - 0.67 13/10/2011 13/10/2011- Nil
Contractors “E—-F 1211012013 i
BERAER tAt=E -E——%
TA+=HZ
_E-=f
TAtH
- 500,000 (500,000) - - 0.98 26/06/2013  26/06/2013- Nil
3= 25/06/2016 i
~AtAR ZE-ZF
AATABEE
“E-RE
~ATRA

8,522,172 10,490,000 (14,791,972 (350,200) 3,870,000

As at 31 March 2014, Options to subscribe for a total of WRZ-ZFE—WE=A=+—H ' X2 aIEEZ2
3,870,000 shares granted by the Company pursuant to the % A28 4 2£3,870,0000% B 17 2 B8 BE #E (0 &
Scheme remained valid and outstanding and the Options B EEAKRITE - MEZEBREGERARSEEE
representing approximately 0.3% of the total number of issued  ZEF71TAXD 42 E490.3%

shares as at the date of this report.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2014 are set
out in note 18(a) to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the percentage of the
Group’'s turnover attributable to the Group’s largest client
and the five largest clients in aggregate were 2.3% and 6.8%
(2013:
principal activities are providing securities, commodities and

1.9% and 6.0% respectively) respectively. The Group’s

futures brokerage services. In the Board’s opinion, the Group has
no major suppliers due to the nature of the Group’s principal
activities of providing securities, commodities and futures
brokerage services.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, none of the Directors
or any of their associates or any shareholders which to the best
knowledge of the Directors, who own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2014, none of the Directors is interested in any
business, apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group has a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. Particulars
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme is set out in note 22 to
the financial statements.

BARBSEHEBERLDF o
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is
to ensure that the Directors are fairly rewarded and that they
receive appropriate incentives to maintain high standards of
performance.

Details of the Director’s emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 are
set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Kai Fung (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Kwok Sze Chi

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Yu Yun Kong
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Yip
Mow Lum, Mr. Kwok Sze Chi and Mr. Szeto Wai Sun will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All of them being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Company at the date of this annual report are set out in
the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section

on pages 41 to 46 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year or with payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the contracts described under the section headed
“Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/CONTINUING BEXRS BEREXS
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. Tenancy Agreements 1. HEH=
The Group had entered into several tenancy agreements AREE(WEAMEP)HEBE AL VETH
(as the tenant) with some connected persons, which EWE . WEHSWEEKR ETHRIET
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Group KREFBIHBBHERLS

under the Listing Rules:

Name Term Amount for
Transaction of counterparty of agreement Address of premises the Year
25 REHR EE IESAS rEELE
(Notel) (Note2) HK$
(1) (H##2) B
Tenancy made on 15 February 2013 Victory Beauty Limited 1 April 2013 to 10/F, Wing On House, 9,600,000
(monthly rental: HK$800,000) as the landlord 31 March 2016 71 Des Voeux Road
RIZ-ZF-_ATHRTUZAN LBERAGAMER¥E —Z-=£MA-RZE Central, Central,
(A7 :800,000% ) —E-~EZfA=t+-8R Hong Kong
ERRREBETIR
KZREAEI0E
Tenancy made on 15 February 2013 Well Point Limited 1 April 2013 to Mezzanine Floor, Peter Building, 3,600,000
(monthly rental: HK$300,000) as the landlord 31 March 2016 58-60 Queen's Road Central,
R-B-=#£-F+RHEFY AEBEBEAREAEE —T-Z€NF-RHZ 13-17 Stanley Street
24 (A7 : 300,000 L) “E-AEZAZ+-H Central, Hong Kong
EARRLARE3-175
EEAER58-605
RAKERE
Tenancy made on 15 February 2013 Sea Magic Limited 1 April 2013 to G/F. & Cockloft, Nos. 141-145 1,560,000
(monthly rental: HK$130,000) as the landlord 31 March 2016 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po,
R-Z-Z%-A+TBi1 PHEERAREAEE C—E-=-FHEA-HEZE New Territories, Hong Kong
ZHH (AR :130,000%7) ZE-R"E=RA=1-H BEMRNBERE

14114554 T REE
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Name Term Amount for

Transaction of counterparty of agreement Address of premises the Year

% REHH [E B3 ES B rEEAR

(Notel) (Note2) HK$

(Hiit1) (h#2) BT

Tenancy made on 15 February 2013 Top Sunshine Development 1 April 2013 to 1/F, Golden Hill 1,620,000

(monthly rental: HK$135,000) Limited as the landlord 31 March 2016 Commercial Building,
W_E-ZF-A+RBF Y BEEREERAA (Note 68) Nos. 39-41 Argyle Street,
ZF#H (A + 135,000 7T) 1 Z5-ZfNA-HE Kowloon, Hong Kong
“E-R"FZA=1-H EENEDEEE
(Hi7t68) 0-MFERWEEAEE
Tenancy made on 15 February 2013 Resultever Limited 1 April 2013 to Cockloft no. 1-6 & Shop No. 7 1,560,000
(monthly rental: HK$130,000) as the landlord 31 March 2016 on G/F, Tak Lee Building,
RZE-ZF-ATHATUZAL  Resultever Limited ZZ-ZFNA-HEZ No. 993 King's Road,
(A7 :130,000%7T) fER¥x “E-xF=A=1+-H Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
ERYRRREEI3N
BHEI-eRERRITINE
Tenancy made on 16 October 2012 Fortunate State Limited 17 October 2012 1o Shop 7, G/F, Whole of 7,920,000
(monthly rental: HK$660,000) as the landlord 31 March 2016 Mezzanine Floor and 1st Floor
(Note 3) REERLAEREE T--£+ATtLRZE of Honour House, Nos 375-381,
WZE——F+ A+ HiL “Z-R E=A=+-8 Nathan Road, Kowloon
ZH# (A7 660,000 7T) NEFZE375-3815 2 BAE
(H#3) WTTRE BRREBLE

TOTAL 25,860,000

o3t

Notes: Htiz

1. Monthly rental was exclusive of management fees, 1. ABRTEEEREE - HHEREMN-
government rent and rates.

2. Each an associate of Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman, Executive 2. BERKRAIER WMITEFHRERRR
Director and controlling shareholder of the Company (“Mr. EEMEE(TEEED ZBEAL -
Yip”).

3. A supplemented agreement was entered on 15 February 3. RIZ—=F"A+ABFuMRHZE "
2013, which extended the expiry date of the existing tenancy BRAERAOZERmBHRE -_E—HF+ A
from 16 October 2015 to 31 March 2016 (monthly rental: +RXBEEEz—ZT—X F=A=+—H(A
HK$660,000). f : 660,000/ 7T) °

4. The annual cap for the Year was HK$25,860,000 and 4. AKEFEEZFELRA25860,0008 T i

thereunder for each of the two financial years ending
31 March 2015 and 2016 are HK$25,860,000 and
HK$25,860,000 respectively.

BE_Z-AER-_ZT-RF=ZA=+—
AILEMEMRFESF2SF LRI
25,860,000/ 7T }25,860,000/& 7T °
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2. Financial Services Agreements

2. STEIRBIHEH

Payment from/

Maximum
amount

Name of Amount for  to the Group for the Year Amount for
connected person Annual cap the Year AZEEXf/ rEE the Year
BEALES EELR FEESE [TAREzEE EEcE rEEAH
HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT
Mr. Yip and his associates being IPO Annual Cap 1,000,000,000  Advance from the Group 983,972,554
his sons, daughter and certain BARREEEELR TEEZ2F
private companies controlled Margin Annual Cap 300,000,000  Advance from the Group 1,598,391
together as by Mr. Yip, FREELR FEEZ BN
"Mr. Yip's Group” Interest paid to the Group 406,917
ERERABEAT(MEART - SATEEEZAE
REREREEETRARA) -
GEIELEEE]
Mr. Chan Kai Fung ("Mr. KF Chan”)  IPO Annual Cap 100,000,000 Advance from the Group 77,903,676
and his associates being his wife ~ BRARBEER LR TEEZ2H
and sister, together as Margin Annual Cap 10,000,000  Advance from the Group 2,770,697
"Mr. KF Chan's Group” FREELR TEEZ BN
BRATIE 4 (TRANE 4 ]) R Interest paid to the Group 81,288
AEHZEAT(EZTRES) IRFREEZFR
GEIRRELERE]
Mr. Kwok Sze Chi ("Mr. Kwok") IPO Annual Cap 100,000,000  Advance from the Group 30,000
BRAXE(BRE] BERRALEER LR TEEZER
Margin Annual Cap 10,000,000 Advance from the Group 299,819
AREE LR AEBZBH
Interest paid to the Group 267
XRTAEEZFE
Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson IPO Annual Cap 20,000,000  Advance from the Group 1,967,448
("Mr. Wilson Chan") and his BRRAHEEEE LR AEBZ 8
associate being his wife, Margin Annual Cap 10,000,000  Advance from the Group 39,278
together as " Mr. Wilson Chan's ARFELR TEEZER
Group” Interest paid to the Group 1,611

BadLE (RAHEL]D R
EBEAL(MEZT)  4f
RxaLERE]

IR FREEZHE
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Maximum
Payment from/ amount
Name of Amount for  to the Group for the Year Amount for
connected person Annual cap the Year AEEXf/ rEE the Year
BEALHE EELR rEEEE [NFEREzEE BREH rEERE
HKS HKS HK$
B B B
Mr. Yu Yun Kong ("Mr. Yu") IPO Annual Cap 20,000,000 Advance from the Group 119,113
ROM([REE]) BERDREEFE LR AEBZBH
Margin Annual Cap 10,000,000  Advance from the Group 615,005
FRERE LR TEEZBR
Interest paid to Group 7,112
INFREEZFE
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun ("Mr. Szeto") IPO Annual Cap 20,000,000  Advance from the Group -
AIRERER T A ([ RIRER A D) BERDRBEEE LR AEEZ B
Margin Annual Cap 10,000,000  Advance from the Group -
AREELR REEZBH
Interest paid to Group -
XNFREEZFIE
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph IPO Annual Cap 20,000,000  Advance from the Group -
("Mr. Ling") BERDAEEFE LR REEZ 2K
REEEE([EEE]) Margin Annual Cap 10,000,000  Advance from the Group -
FREELR AEE B
Interest paid to Group -
XRFAEEZFIE
Mr. Cheung Ka Wong, Henry IPO Annual Cap 20,000,000 Advance from the Group -
("Mr. Cheung”) ERARBEER LR FEEZBH
RRERE ([REE]) Margin Annual Cap 10,000,000  Advance from the Group -
FRER LR TEEZER
Interest paid to Group -
XATAEEZFIE
Mr. Chan Kei ("Mr. K Chan") IPO Annual Cap 20,000,000  Advance from the Group -
RELE(RELE]) BRRRBEEEE LR AEEZ B
Margin Annual Cap 10,000,000  Advance from the Group -
FEREE LR REE B3

Interest paid to Group

XNTAREZHE
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Maximum
Payment from/ amount
Name of Amount for  to the Group for the Year Amount for
connected person Annual cap the Year AEEXf/ rEE the Year
BEALHE EELR rEESE MFAEE2EE BREHE rEEAR
HKS HKS HKS
B B B
Ms. Li Wan Mei (“Ms. Li") IPO Annual Cap 20,000,000 Advance from the Group 30,000
FRERL([FRt)) BERDREEFE LR AEEZBR
Margin Annual Cap Advance from the Group
FREELR 10,000,000 AEEZBH 10,866
Interest paid to Group 9

X FAREEZME

Note: Wi -

Mr. Yip, Mr. KF Chan, Mr. Wilson Chan and Mr. Kwok are Executive  # 4 A4 . FRERIE 48 A « F K 50 4 I 50 % 4 B KA 7
Directors of the Company. Mr. Yu, Mr. Szeto and Mr. Ling are #1378 = - f%k4  FIELRLEREELE BRDTE T
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company. Ms. Li and Mr.  Jf#i {78 =« x4+ NELEE AAAT 2 F AR &
Chung are directors of the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. K Chan was = . [ %&t ABAATZFATZEE YR -_T—=

a director of a subsidiary of the Company and resigned on 13 June 2013. & X B+ = 88T - Bk A AL A 2 o4 o
Mr. Wilson Chan is a nephew of Mr. Yip.
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3. Brokerage Services Agreements

The aggregate amount of brokerage commission income
paid by the relevant connected persons for the brokerage
services provided by the Group for the Year are set out as
below:

BRI =

REE  HEABEALIRAREER 2K
RN E LM RALREIWT

Amount for

Name of connected person Annual Cap the Year

BEALHE FELR RNEEHRE
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Mr. Yip's Group 10,000,000 28,209

S ]

Mr. KF Chan’s Group 1,000,000 54,950

PRESIE RS E

Mr. Kwok 1,000,000 24,310

BRAE

Mr. Wilson Chan’s Group 1,000,000 2,886

BRoK 3B 5E 4 &

Mr. Yu 1,000,000 21,238

REE

Mr. Szeto 1,000,000 248

AIERE

Mr. Ling 1,000,000 6,557

V$ita

Mr. Cheung 1,000,000 -

3R 5 A

Mr. K Chan 1,000,000 -

PR3 5 A4

Ms. Li 1,000,000 50

FR L

BAIBHEHMEBERAR « —_T— =/ —FFR
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Shareholder’s financial assistance

On 13 June 2012, Bright Smart Securities International
(H.K.) Limited (“BSSI"”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a new loan facility letter
with China Finance (Worldwide) Limited (“CFW"), a
company which is 100% beneficially owned by Mr. Yip,
for provision of an increased revolving loan facility from
HK$310,000,000 to HK$600,000,000 by CFW to BSSI for
BSSI’'s general working capital purposes. The maximum loan
amount drawn during the Year is HK$260,600,000 (2013:
HK$410,000,000). Interest expense of HK$1,494,000 was
paid to CFW during the Year (2013: HK$3,270,000). The
loan bears interest at HIBOR plus 2.75% per annum, is
unsecured and repayable on demand. As at 31 March 2014,
no drawing was made (2013: HK$100,000,000) under the
facility.

On 31 March 2011, the Company entered into a loan
facility letter with World Mix Limited (“WML"), a company
which is 100% beneficially owned by Mr. Yip, for provision
of a HK$310,000,000 revolving loan facility from WML to
the Company for the Company’s general working capital
purpose. The maximum loan amount drawn during the
year is HK$150,000,000 (2013: HK$ Nil). Interest expense
of HK$498,000 was paid to WML during the year (2013:
HK$ Nil). The loan bears interest at HIBOR plus 2.25% per
annum, is unsecured and repayable on demand. As at 31
March 2014, no drawing was made (2013: HK$ Nil) under
the facility.

The Directors, including the Independent Non-executive
Directors, were of the opinion that the entering into
the two aforesaid facility letters and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were on normal commercial terms
and were fair and reasonable and was for the benefit of
the Group and no security over the assets of the Group
was granted in respect of the transactions. The transactions
were thus exempted from the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant
to Rule 14A.65(4) of the Listing Rules.

R 3Rz Bt 35 & BY

RZBE—=—FXA+=0 BFEFLFERE
(BRE)BRR2B(BAFF]  ARrAZ
MEzANBEL R BR RS (HE)E
RARl([FRMKE] EEE2EEEHE
B2 E) BEIMERBERYT  NEAB
BRI ERRS EHREBRE DR
& F3310,000,000/% 7T 1 £600,000,000/%8
T BIE—REEES - FAMRDRSRES
B 7% 5260,600,0008 T (ZE— =4 :
410,000,000/ 7T) ° F K [ # B B 7 2
17 BB 1,494,000 T (Z 2 — =4 :
3,270,000/ L) - BRI EBRITRER
BIR2.75%F F L5 B - AEEIERAR
BREE N_E—NFEF=A=+—0"
MERDNAMNEERE (ZT—=F
100,000,0005& 7T) °

MR-ZE——F=A=+—0 KA FHH
GARAR (Tttig ]  BEAE2BEEXHER
ZRARBIERBERG AR EBER
MZARQ B REERE K EE310,000,0007%8
L BE—MEEES - FRARIES
& 758 /5150,000,00058 ¢ (ZE— =4
=) o F N[ 4R S F B B 498,000
T(ZE—=ZF: %) -BEFIREBRTHE
ERBEN2.25%FFEFE - AEKE LA
BEREE -R-T—WNF=ZA=+—8"
MERDTWNERRE(ZE—=F %) -

EE(PREBUFNTES)RE FINLE
MANBERREBETRET IR ST)
RE—REEERRT L TEAFESE -
BEfFEAEEND  URTERZERS
EIHRARGBEE At ZERHAIER
% FHEAIE14A654)E 2 BIR - A
RS IRE R EZHTE ©
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5. Annual review of the continuing connected
transactions

The Independent Non-executive Directors had reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the transactions were:

(a) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group;

(b) conducted on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favorable to the Group than terms available to
or from independent third parties; and

(c) entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
"Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter
containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by
the Group in its normal course of business are set out in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related party
transactions which constituted connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, which are set
out in the section headed “Connected Transactions/Continuing
Connected Transactions” on pages 72 to 79, have complied with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

5. BEREXSZZFERY

BIYFATEFC R LA ERE

WHERZERS
(@) MAKBZHEER—MEBHBEPE]
VA

(b) B—REXEFIBTIERAKE G
FTHREBBLE=FZGTET K

(0 REAEEEHS BRAFARELF
BARFIRREBEN G ZFRRETL -

ARRAZBENCERE  URBEEXSE
RESHERIZE 30005 [ EZABEHAENHE
BN BRI W2REBEMA

SHEM 2 BSHAE7405: [ FANEACLT
FRRI) P L 15 48 B 52 52 5 B A SR BR 1 ] L
AEBEZHBEBERSEHRE - REE
REMRAIZE14A 381K - XA E A E &
AEBEBEB HERERIZIBERER
Kfgwm ZHEAEBREBERLZ KM -

AR A2 ) B 32 P HR B2 A% B £R A B

BEALRS
REERATEBBREPETZIERNBAEALTR
S BERN A IS MENE29R - BIE LT
RAEKBERD BERERS (HRENRE
B [HERS,/ BERERS ] —8) 2%5H
BEATRZDETEMABEI14AE -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2014, the Directors and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company and their irrespective associates had the

EERTHAIRKRG RAERKR®D
Z

RZZ-—NF=ZA=1+—H8 ' ARREZENTK
BERRES B BB ARANRE 2 &iEk
BOORBEAN TG MRxEFERTRE(ES
KEIERD) £3521F M EAE T < Bt Ra
BIRBI(ETRTAEFTETESFRGZIIEE
STAD(TMRESFR D EMEARBRREBBE R
ZFIARRAE ([BEAPT]) 2 e

following interests in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO") or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"):

(A) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the (A) RELQTRGORAERERKRG 2R
Company

Approximate

percentage
of the issued
share capital

Long/ Number of HEBRTREZ
Name of Director Nature of interest short positions shares BMABE D
B ERMtE B/ KA [igvip = (%)
Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Note) Interest in a controlled Long position 600,000,000 53.53%
ERMEE (W) corporation A

REEBE R

Mr. Yip Mow Lum Beneficial owner Long position 81,392,000 7.26%
RRmEs EREBA e
Mr. Chan Kai Fung Beneficial owner Long position 200,000 0.02%
PR RRU& 5E & EnEAA e
Mr. Kwok Sze Chi Beneficial owner Long position 1,000,000 0.09%
HBBEE EREBA e
Mr. Yu Yun Kong Beneficial owner Long position 478,644 0.04%
REMI% AL ExBEA e
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun Beneficial owner Long position 280,644 0.03%
AR R EREBA e
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph Beneficial owner Long position 688,644 0.06%

ERERE

BEaBEA

iR
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(B)

Note:

The 600,000,000 shares were held by New Charming Holdings
Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the
Chairman of the Board. Therefore, Mr. Yip Mow Lum is deemed
to be interested in these shares. During a placing exercise of the
Company as announced on 27 January 2014, New Charming
Holdings Limited granted put options involving 150,000,000 shares
in favour of the placees, which are exercisable by the placees
during the period from 27 October 2015 to 27 November 2015,

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the
Directors or the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
or their respective associates had any interest or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

Share options

The interests of the Directors and Chief Executive Officer
in the share options of the Company are detailed in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” on pages 63 to 68
of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year, the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer (including their
spouses and children under 18 years of age) had any
interest in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights
to subscribe for shares (or warrants or debentures, if
applicable) of the Company or its associated corporations
required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

(B)

mat

600,000,0000% i 5 AT RBAIER AR A A (F
EEIREEMEL2ERBZ2TNEE -
I BEEMEEREABRZERO P HEEES -
BIMAAR R A-_ZT—NF—A-_++tHZA
MR  RARBETRER - TRBEZERE
PR 2 &) ) 7 B A 4% HH 4 12 150,000,000 4% A% 17
RHEE  ARAATR -_T—AE+A=-++H
E-T-RAF+—A-+tBAEMTE -

BREXHEEN R_FT-—HF=ZA=1+—
B ARQRISEF THRAHAKSEA
ZHMBEATHEEARRSETABEERE
B (RCEH LRGN BXVEBFTIE 2 E
&) 2D - BB SIS HA T
BHHEAR  MEEEEIAR ZRIE(ES
KERVERD)) 352 R ERBF 2 E LM
AR ARBEFETRAENE AN QA
R X P 2 W s

Bk

EENTREHERARABEREZ BaRN
F63E68H MBS | — & -

BREXFEEN  RERTAGHE &2
ERTTBAR (BRREZRB R ARMS
2 FR)EEE - BRAITEEMRE
(BHEHEGRMDATHEANREAR A
SEBBOEER D (KBREERES - 1
) Z R -

BAIBHEHMEBERAR « —_T— =/ —FFR
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2014, the interests of substantial shareholders
(other than the Directors and chief executives) in the shares or
the underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

%E&i%$ﬁﬂﬁ$¢2%é&

RZZF-—NF=A=1—0 REFEFLHE
RO EXVERE2 R E3NFAMGARTF - KA
RSN IRIECRE 7 R B 150 F33615 R EAE
F2ERMZARRROHBEED 2 EBZME
(BEERTETBRABKRIN #EOT

Approximate

percentage
of the issued
share capital

Long/ Number of HEBRTREZ
Name of shareholder Nature of interest short positions shares BMOBEI
BRRER EEHE ¥/ %E RDEE (%)
Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited Beneficial owner Long position 100,000,000 8.92%

BAARBREBABRRA EREEBA
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, there was no
other person who had any interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board of Directors, as
at the date of this report, there has been sufficient public float
of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required
under the Listing Rules.

R

B EXREIN R-T-HF=A=+—H " #
BEMATRARRTRMDKABEROF AR
BCEF M E GO EXVEBE2RE3D F R E
ARARARE  HCCBERNRBE(EFEHE
GBI FE3361EMERABF 2 ELM - HAENEAM
FAMERRA MR ZEERIORE °

REABRERE
REAATNTREZARENRBEFEMA -
BEAREAH ARARASRTROPERA
25%ERBEE A LTRUMREZRRLD
BEBREER -
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

—

: , + A
Directors’ Report &= & &
EEEN
REFNILF|ET LI FEERR B EHE
DEBREBZERRITHAEN -
SEEA
RABIHRAC T BEREERTRARTERE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”

section on pages 47 to 59 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors to be

independent.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 have
been audited by Messrs. KPMG, who will retire at the conclusion
of the forthcoming annual general meeting. Messrs. KPMG, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Messrs. KPMG as the independent auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in,
or the exercise of any rights in relation to the shares of the
Company, they are advised to consult an expert.

BARBSEHEBERLDF o

A7TE59R Z [(RER|E | —H o

NHHNTES B IMER

AAGEBESBEIENTEECFERRE -
RAEERE FMRBNEINNEZ B - AR
ARALEBYIIFNTESHABIAL -

ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ

BE_T-NEF=_A=t—HALFEZMBHREX
Eﬁ%%%@é SEEBAERZ  E5HETME
BABRERERRBFAGHERKRE  HEAE
RUFEEBEET EFERRNERERRAFA
2 REEEESHEMEBAARNRAZ
BIBD 2 RFR -

BECEXBBER
WMARARIARBEME A HE BT
HATEARD AE BRI 2 ETHTI 2 RETE -
EERSHATEAL -
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE ACCOUNTS

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of
accounts for each financial period, which gives a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cashflows for that period. In preparing these accounts for the
year ended 31 March 2014, the Board of Directors has selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,
and has prepared the accounts on a going concern basis. The
Board of Directors is responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the
financial position of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Kai Fung
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
16 June 2014

EEEHRENBE

EXe R ERUESVBHHAREEERA TR
MRAKEZSEHNN ZREXERREREZ
RE - RBREBEE_T-HF=A=1+—HILF
BZHRER EFSCERVERMERGEZE
AR - (FHEEGIE 2 HIE AR LB RE
BREEEREERE EFCREARTEEZS
FHACER - ABERERS IR ERM W BEAEE 2 B 7%
AR

REEES
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Independent Auditor’s Report

chlic

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Bright Smart Securities and Commodities Group Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set
out on pages 87 to 159, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2014,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

EIAVR 2 SR &S

HRTEZETHEMBRDARRZ
BYRBE®RE
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Az BN (A TERIERM)) BB TIHRFE87
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

16 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

re R EWERR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_FE—mE=H=+—HIFFE(LETIT)

2014 2013
—E-—MF —E—=F
Note $'000 $'000
otz T T
Turnover EERE 3 410,380 273,281
Other revenue = 4 74,408 57,724
Other net gain H bW a5 58 5 2,290 345
487,078 331,350

Staff costs B TR 6(b) (94,366) (85,079)
Depreciation e (15,499) (12,857)
Other operating expenses HEfhEems 6(c) (135,286) (109,456)
Profit from operations FE— g 241,927 123,958
Finance costs B 75 Bk 2N 6(a) (45,327) (16,807)
Profit before taxation B Fi A1 5 A 6 196,600 107,151
Income tax FTis &t 7 (29,853) (14,925)
Profit and total comprehensive EaBRRELFER

income attributable to equity EAREEKEARE

shareholders for the year 166,747 92,226
Earnings per share BREF
Basic (cents) EA () 11 15.97 10.18
Diluted (cents) BE5E () 11 15.96 10.17

The notes on pages 94 to 159 form part of these financial 2594% 1598 ~ Kf 5 # 5k 1t 2 B % R % A b &6
statements. Details of dividends declared for the year are set out % - FR TR E Z 15 FH AR M E24(b) »
in note 24(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR IR

At 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REZFE—WF=H=+—H (K¥ETSTF)

2014 2013
—E-OF =F—=
Note $'000 $'000
otz T T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Fixed assets & E & B 13 30,393 25,708
Deferred tax assets RAETIBE E 23(b)(ii) 1,436 315
Other receivables, deposits and HMERHRIE Re Rk
prepayments TE FRIE 16 14,602 13,378
Other non-current assets B 3ERBEE 14 46,718 47,425
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 93,149 86,826
Current assets REBEE
Accounts receivable JiE Uk BR 5k 15 4,147,315 2,705,904
Other receivables, deposits and B sIE - ek
prepayments TE IR 16 2,805 12,391
Cash and cash equivalents BeBEEEY 17(a) 370,374 381,478
Total current assets RBEELE 4,520,494 3,099,773
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable JFE AR K 19 782,388 614,390
Accrued expenses and other payables  J&&t 59 2 & E i JE {5 508 20 35,511 21,574
Bank loans RITER 21 2,776,000 1,690,000
Current taxation BN EARE 18 23(a) 15,297 3,133
Amount due to a related company JERT— R E FRIA 29(c)(iv) - 100,000
Total current liabilities REBEEHERE 3,609,196 2,429,097
Net current assets RBEEFE 911,298 670,676
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZABERADEES 1,004,447 757,502
Non-current liability FRBEEB
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFHIBEE 23(b)(ii) 73 26
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,004,374 757,476
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %54 B ik R &

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
Note $'000 $'000
k=3 T T+

EQUITY =
Share capital & 7 24 336,278 309,341
Share premium & = (B 24 332,398 250,319
Merger reserve B o 24 (20,000) (20,000)
Share option reserve BREREE 24 843 1,687
Retained profits IR BB A 24 354,855 216,129
TOTAL EQUITY REREE 1,004,374 757,476

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

16 June 2014

The notes on pages 94 to 159 form part of these financial 594%F 159

statements.

Yip Mow Lum
ER M

T2 o

Directors

5=

Chan Kai Fung
PR R U

REFEXN_T—MOFNATNARELRE

L M BRI EM R E D -
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Statement of Financial Position

BT IR aR

At 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REZFE—WF=H=+—H (K¥ETSTF)

2014 2013
—E-mE e
Note $'000 $'000
/i3 T T
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RETB AR Z®E 18 6,015 3,804
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 6,015 3,804
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B A B 308 18(b) 921,227 661,041
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEFEY 17(a) 4,129 7,019
Total current assets REBEEHAE 925,356 668,060
Current liabilities RBaE
Other payables H b fE N FIE 20 265 27
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE S 18(b) 66 66
Bank loans IRITE X 21 230,000 80,000
Current taxation BIHARR 18 23(a) 76 =
Total current liabilities REEEAE 230,407 80,093
Net current assets RBEEFHE 694,949 587,967
NET ASSETS EEEE 700,964 591,771
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Statement of Financial Position BA f& Ak R 2=

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=%F
Note $'000 $'000
otz T Tt

EQUITY =
Share capital & 7 24 336,278 309,341
Share premium & = (B 24 332,398 250,319
Share option reserve 5 % R 24 843 1,687
Retained profits R 5 A 24 31,445 30,424
TOTAL EQUITY ERaE 700,964 591,771

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

16 June 2014

Yip Mow Lum
ER M

Directors

5=

T2 o

The notes on pages 94 to 159 form part of these financial  %594% 159

statements.

RESERN_FT-NEA T NBAHETRE

Chan Kai Fung
PR R i

L M BRI EH R A -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in

—|I— N\ 7/
\ II\EIII\
/\\/T\ 1 %b %E

For the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_F—MFE=F=+—HIFELETITF)

quity

Share
Share Share Merger option  Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity
BA  RHEE SOHREE BRERE (KSHEF EZLE
Note $000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
i T T T T T T
At 1 April 2012 R=ZB—-=%
H—H 204,847 181,907 (20,000) 3,427 123,617 493,798
Changes in equity for BE_Z-=%
the year ended =A=t+-HL
31 March 2013: FECERRE:
Dividend paid during FNREFNRE
the year 24(b)(ii) - (18,436) - - - (18,436)
Shares issued under BRETEET
rights issue BEEITRG 24(c)ii) 102,423 85,353 = = = 187,776
Shares issuance costs R BT 24(c)(ii) = (2,514) = = = (2,514)
Shares issued under BRETEET
share option scheme BETRM 24(c) i) 2,071 4,009 - (1,454) = 4,626
Profit and total FREFNEEZE
comprehensive Wzmsm
income for the year - - - - 92,226 92,226
Equity-settled share-based 1z & B AR B
payments EE 2508 - = = (286) 286 =
At 31 March 2013 R-¥-=%=A
=+—-H 309,341 250,319 (20,000) 1,687 216,129 757,476
At 1 April 2013 R-E-=£WA-AH 309,341 250,319 (20,000) 1,687 216,129 757,476
Changes in equity for BE-Z2-I%
the year ended =A=+-HL
31 March 2014: FEZERZE:
Dividend paid during FRIEMARE
the year 24(b)(ii) - - - - (28,039) (28,039)
New shares issued TR R D 24(0)() 22,500 75,000 - - - 97,500
Shares issuance costs R 1 EATRA 24(c)(i) - (3,421) - - = (3,421)
Shares issued under ERESEIET
share option scheme EETRA 24(c)(iii) 4,437 10,500 = (3,055) = 11,882
Profit and total FRaFREAE
comprehensive W B
income for the year - - - - 166,747 166,747
Equity-settled share-based — #Ez & & MR 7D
payments RE A - - - 2,211 18 2,229
At 31 March 2014 R=Z2-0F
ZA=t—-H 336,278 332,398 (20,000) 843 354,855 1,004,374

The notes on pages 94 to 159 form part of these financial

statements.

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2013/14
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\
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
/\\/T\/\EE 7 ;ﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BFr —F—FE=A=—+—HIFFE (LETIT)

2014 2013
—Z—-NF —E—=
Note $°000 $000
iorza Fx Tt
Operating activities REED
Cash used in operations KREXBRAR® 17(b) (1,028,105) (1,354,468)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEfEBFEH (18,763) (16,037)
Net cash used in operating RETHARSER
activities (1,046,868) (1,370,505)
Investing activities REED
Payment for purchase of fixed assets % B B & & E K (20,474) (12,922)
Interest received B F 2 37,643 28,207
Net cash generated from investing REEFE SRS FE
activities 17,169 15,285
Financing activities MEED
Proceeds from bank loans RITERATBHRIE 1,086,000 1,265,000
Repayment of a related company loan —ZX#E Q7 B 5KE K (100,000) (80,000)
Dividend paid BT AR E (28,039) (18,436)
Interest paid EAHE (45,327) (16,807)
Proceeds from issue of new shares ?"fﬁ%ﬁﬂxﬁﬁ?ﬁ%?ﬁ 97,500 =
Proceeds from exercise of shares option 77 {5 §& i% % Fr 15 50 0B 11,882 4,626
Proceeds from rights issue HALIE T AT1S A - 187,776
Payment of shares issuance costs AT IR AR BE AT R AR (3.421) (2,514)
Net cash generated from financing BEEFEFFESHE S FE
activities 1,018,595 1,339,645
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRRSEBYURDFE
equivalents (11,104) (15,575)
Cash and cash equivalents ROA—HAZRS
at 1 April REELEEY 381,478 397,053
Cash and cash equivalents R=BA=+—HBzHE2%
at 31 March RRAEEEY 17(a) 370,374 381,478

The notes on pages 94 to 159 form part of these financial 5594F 1598 v s LM GHAzH P I H o
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 15 i 2k B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B =B - LAETIR)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited
(the "Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 4 August 2009 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
registered office of the Company is Floor 4, Willow House,
Cricket Square, P.O.Box 2804, Grand Cayman KY1-1112,
Cayman lIslands. The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2014 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, which for this financial year and the
comparative period continue to be those of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in
accordance with transitional and saving arrangements
for Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which
are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

—RER
BAEFTREEFGRAR(TARA] R
—EEAFNRAEOARBEREHSEMNE
RERFVE(—NAAR—FRBZE0 - B4R
EREF) EREHETMKIRERE
BRAF o AR A i MIFEE AFloor
4, Willow House,Cricket Square, P.O. Box
2804, Grand Cayman KY1-1112, Cayman
Islands e Bl ZE —F—WMFE=A=+—H 1t
FEZHEEMBRERERRT RAMNE
NE(REIAERE]) -

KARZEBEBEAREER - EWEA
RlZ EBEG KA 15 EH NS R KM
5F18

BEAREFEEK
(a) &HEBH

HEFBHRRCBREEGTNAE
(FEEEAE]) B 2MBEER
(BETBHREEN([BEMBRS
R - BYEMAAERZERCEEM
BHREEAN) (FEGHEN (TE
BERTEL] RRE) BELARE
ARAGR - WEMBHBRERTAEL
(RBEMEPD ZBEHRE  EFRAY
BEEREBHPE  REH(RFIH
I (%6225) £980 [ AR B REST AT
B2 BB R RS B (R %
ERBIM R1NEBTOIREFLT7IR) - #E
m A A (A RHED) (£32F) < %
MBEBRTNTE(ERBRERIME
RAREBEF MR 2 ERRER
E o AEERAZEXNSFTHRME
BRI -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7% & 3% M 7+

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group's financial statements:

- HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

- Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011
Cycle

- Amendments to HKFRS 7, Disclosures -
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

The impacts of the developments are discussed below:

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements
relating to the preparation of consolidated financial
statements and HK-SIC 12, Consolidation — Special
purpose entities. It introduces a single control
model to determine whether an investee should be
consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity has
power over the investee, exposure or rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and the
ability to use its power to affect the amount of those
returns.

The adoption does not change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
involvement with other entities as at 1 April 2013.

2 ERGHBE®E)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7% 3 7% i 3+

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

This cycle of annual improvements contains
amendments to five standards with consequential
amendments to other standards and interpretations.
The adoption of the amendments does not have an
impact on these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect
of offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities.
Those new disclosures are required for all recognised
financial instruments that are set off in accordance
with HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation
and those that are subject to an enforceable master
netting arrangement or similar agreement that
covers similar financial instruments and transactions,
irrespective of whether the financial instruments are
set off in accordance with HKAS 32.

To the extent that the requirements are applicable to
the Group, the Group has expanded its disclosures
about the offsetting of financial assets and financial
liabilities in note 27(f).

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the year in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year,
or in the year of the revision and future years if the
revision affects both current and future years.

2 ERGHBE®E)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7% & 3% M 7+

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Basis of consolidation

)

(1)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(g)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale.

Business combinations involving entities
under common conitro/

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
combining entities or businesses as if they
had been combined from the date when the
combining entities or business first came under
the control of the controlling parties.

The net assets of the combining entities or
business are recognised at the carrying values
prior to the common control combination.

The consolidated financial statements include
the results of each of the combining entities
or business from the earliest date presented
or since the date when combining entities or
business first came under the control of the
controlling parties, where this is a shorter period,
regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the
entities or businesses had been combined at
the previous reporting date or when they first
came under control of the controlling parties,
whichever is shorter.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7% 3 7% i 3+

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(g)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of fixed assets are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of fixed assets, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their

estimated useful lives as follows:

- Leasehold Shorter of the unexpired

improvements term of lease and 3 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years
- Office equipment 5 years
- Furniture and fixtures 5 years
- Computers and software 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Operating lease charges

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases. Where the Group has the use
of assets under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by
the lease terms, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to
be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7% & 3% M 7+

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Financial instruments

The Group classified non-derivative financial assets

into the following categories: loans and receivables

and cash and cash equivalents.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities

into the other financial liabilities category.

(7

Non-derivative financial assets and financial
liabilities — recognition and derecognition

The Group initially recognised loans and
receivables when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recognised on the trade date.

The Group derecognises financial asset when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire or it transfers the rights to receive
the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred,
or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership and does
not retain control over the transferred asset. Any
interest in such derecognised financial assets that
is created or retained by the Group is recognised
as a separate asset or liability.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when
its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the
Group has a legal right to offset the amounts
and intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7% 3 7% i 3+

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EAREHBEX®
(Continued)
(f) Financial instruments (Continued) (f) €@THE)
(77) MNon-derivative financial assets — (i) FIUTEHBEE -2

measurement
Loans and receivables B K ERRIE
These assets are initially recognised at fair value ZEBENSRATFENERNE
plus any directly attributable transaction costs. BEREZZEATER - 1SR
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are & - ERERNSIEREBHKA
measured at amortised cost using the effective it= o

interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEEY
In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash FHReRERY  HekResE
equivalents includes cash at banks and on hand, EMBERERITEREEFRS
and demand deposits with banks and form an SHEANBRANEFRSEIE 28
integral part of the Group'’s cash management. DHEITFER ©

(i77) Non-derivative financial liabilities - (iii) FITEHBERE - E
measurement
Non-derivative financial liabilities are initially IPTEIM BBV FIZARER
recognised at fair value less any directly EREEBERSKAER © 4]
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to PHERIE  ZEWBEaETERE
initial recognition, these liabilities are measured PR A BOE R B SHB AN T &£
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

(g) Impairment of assets (90 EERIE

(i) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries (i) REBLAGZREUREK
and accounts recejvable and other BR50R E it JE 1 50 2E a8
receivables
Investments in subsidiaries and accounts e N S S P AR B BR 2 FA B B
receivable and other receivables that are carried AT 7B - FEUEE N % B e
at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at each WEHIBR R RS AR - IR
reporting date to determine whether there is EESEEREDE o TEEE

objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about

EEERASETEEAMR A
HZEATERERZ AIBEH

one or more of the following loss events: iR :

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor; - BEBAZERMBEE

—  a breach of contract, such as a default - EXNTA MR KEE
or delinquency in interest or principal BEMEHAE

payments;
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7% & 3% M 7+

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEAEHBEX@®
(Continued)
(g) Impairment of assets (Continued) (g) EERME#E)

(7) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries (i) F‘/f/j‘Ei‘\ 221K’ ﬁl,{ R EIK
and accounts recerfvable and other BRI N2 B JE I 50 18 Bt (E
recelivables (Continued) (&)

- it becoming probable that the debtor - EBABREARETHRE
will enter bankruptcy or other financial SHMBEHR &
reorganisation; and

-  significant changes in the technological, — BE -mB- LEXEE
market, economic or legal environment ?EEZZEKﬁ@J%%%/\
that have an adverse effect on the debtor. EETFFE -

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss MFEEAZEEE - ERRE

is determined and recognised as follows: BiEETRERAT

—  For investments in subsidiaries, the - BRHRBRAAIZIEEM
impairment loss is measured by comparing = BEEBIIEENGE
the recoverable amount of the investment 2(g)(iNFT il 2 4% & 2 7] WK
with its carrying amount in accordance oM EREEZH
with note 2(g)(i)). The impairment loss is = o W1 & BT 7£2(g)(ii)
reversed if there has been a favourable Frat A EE € 7] W el & &8
change in the estimates used to determine ZEETEIR AR EE - 8
the recoverable amount in accordance with @ ¥ o] 5 (B BT 18 o
note 2(g)(ii).

-  For accounts receivable and other —  BIERBEAATR ZER
receivables carried at amortised cost, BR R K& H fib & U ZRIE
the impairment loss is measured as the T OMMREEEKNH
difference between the asset’s carrying EEEEREERAEBEHRM
amount and the present value of AAARBEEREREBEZE
estimated future cash flows, discounted HRBBEERLER
at the financial asset’s original effective FE (AT HERZEEE
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest Rt 2 B A2) BRIRET
rate computed at initial recognition ;EﬁOfu’?*E&ﬁﬁﬁ}iZJS@JﬁEZ
of these assets), where the effect of B 7% & B PR 2 R B R
discounting is material. This assessment i (@ ﬂj:/RﬁM)&
is made collectively where financial assets I 5K {8 R 5T 73 3R R E
carried at amortised cost share similar risk % Hlg J,A%ﬁa FERETT
characteristics, such as similar past due Fih o RERTE ARE
status, and have not been individually Zﬁ\ﬁ%ﬁézxﬂéiﬁﬁm
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows NN EERRBFEBEU
for financial assets which are assessed ZEGHNCEEZBE
for impairment collectively are based on BB SR RIKIE o

historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of M A& B 2 BB S 18
an impairment loss decreases and the SR - B BERER
decrease can be linked objectively to an B EERRERERE
event occurring after the impairment loss A ENHER - ARER
was recognised, the impairment loss is BeRBmEb - mES
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal BrzELOTEEHEER
of an impairment loss shall not result in E B 8 38 EL 72 38 1 HAfE I
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that mERREEENRES
which would have been determined had no EL LR -

impairment loss been recognised in prior
periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7% 3 7% i 3+

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(77) Impairment of fixed assets

Internal and external sources of information

are reviewed at each reporting date to identify

indications that fixed assets may be impaired

or an impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7% & 3% M 7+

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

()

()]

(k)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(77) Impairment of fixed assets (Continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior periods.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the period in which the
reversals are recognised.

Accounts receivable and other receivables

Accounts receivable and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 2(g)(i)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at
cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see note 2(g)(i)).

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, and demand deposits with banks.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7% 3 7% i 3+

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred.

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a share option
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured
at the grant date using the Black-Scholes model,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the options will
vest.

Where the Company enters into equity-settled
share-based payment arrangements involving
employees of subsidiaries, the cost is recognised
in “Investment in subsidiaries” and credited
to the “Share option reserve” over the vesting
period. The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is included in the amount recognised in
share capital for the shares issued) or the vested
option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

(m) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7% & 3% M 7+

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2 ERGHBE®E)

(m) Income tax (Continued)

(m) FREH (&)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7% 3 7% i 3+

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2 ERGHBE®E)

(m) FREH (&)

(m) Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each reporting date and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities if the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7% & 3% M 7+

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(7)) Brokerage commission income

Brokerage commission income is recognised on a
trade date basis when the relevant transactions
are executed. Volume rebate to customers
is recognised as a reduction in brokerage
commission income when payment of the rebate
is probable and the amounts can be estimated
reliably. The fair value of the consideration
received or receivable in respect of the initial
trade under customer loyalty programmes is
allocated between the award credits and other
components of the trade by reference to their
relative fair value. The amount of revenue
recognised shall be based on the number of
the awards credits that have been redeemed
in exchange of free or discounted brokerage
service, relative to the number expected to be
redeemed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7% 3 7% i 3+

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

(aq)

(r)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(77) Income from bullion trading

Income from bullion trading is recognised when
the related services are rendered.

(777) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

(7v) Handling and settlement fee income

Handling and settlement fee income are
recognised when the related services are
rendered.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates.

Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other
fiduciary capacities that result in the holding or
placing of assets on behalf of its customers. These
assets arising thereon are excluded from the
consolidated financial statements, as they are not
assets of the Group.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(2) has significant influence over the Group; or
(3) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parents.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Related parties (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group is any of the
following conditions applies:

(1)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(2) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(4) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third party.

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7% 3 7% i 3+

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXSFEE®
(Continued)
(s) Segment reporting (Continued) (s) DETHE (&)
Individually material operating segments are not MPBEREMST » EREELELE DI
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the TEHREEW BRIELEZEDHEBLE
segments have similar economic characteristics and P ESBAREER KRGS -
are similar in respect of the nature of products and EERFME  BERFERIERN - H
services, the nature of production processes, the type SHE Mo IRGP B 2 A R
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute ERIBME S EAL - IR RIS
the products or provide the services, and the nature BEAZREDEIHRBFELAKRBY
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments e BT &REETE
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.
3 TURNOVER 3 BX®
The principal activities of the Group are securities broking, AEBXTEXERAZTHEL  HFEBE
margin financing, commodities and futures broking and EmEkHERLUARBEESR S
bullion trading.
Turnover represents the brokerage commission from EEBIEREESF mmMkBELE B
securities, commodities and futures broking, dealing income EERGBA  URFEBRERHXAH
from bullion trading and interest income from margin and BE(BRAAAZEE)MEMGANEKA
initial public offering (“IPO") financings as follows: mr
2014 2013
—E-0mF —T—=%F
$'000 $'000
Fx Tt
Brokerage commission LLfe 292,994 216,192
Dealing income from bullion trading REERXHHBA 420 -
Interest income from margin financing fFRERE A S WA 107,294 55,883
Interest income from IPO financing BHARAAHAEEREF WA 9,672 1,206
410,380 273,281
The Group’s customer base is diversified and no customer AEEEFPERERE BEEAE KPP
had transactions which exceeded 10% of the Group’s TR BBAEBEYZ10% °
revenue.
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4 OTHER REVENUE 4 Htlk=
2014 2013
—E-IF —F—=
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Interest income from ﬂ BIAKRE
— Authorised institutions R AR 20,075 18,812
— Others - Eﬁﬂ 17,568 9,395
37,643 28,207
Handling and settlement fees FEBMNEEER 35,384 28,557
Sundry income IR A 1,381 960
74,408 57,724
5 OTHER NET GAIN 5 HftzmFHE
2014 2013
—F-NmF == =
$'000 $'000
SEoE Tt
Net foreign exchange gain HNEE UG 25 BE 1,858 1,285
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBTEERIE (290) (554)
Error trades arising from dealings EBRR5 1,244 (134)
Others Ei (522) (252)
2,290 345
6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 BRT AR F
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BRELRDR M E R T 5% 1A -
2014 2013
—E-mEF ==
$'000 $000
Fr Tt
(a) Finance costs (a) BB
Interest expense on AT EIEFEMRE
— Bank loans for IPO financing - BRALRABERE ZRT
B 6,178 741
— Other bank loans and overdrafts — HRTE JX&LE‘Z 37,157 12,796
— Loans from related companies — REBBATE 1,992 3,270
45,327 16,807

BABSEHEBERLDF o
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6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (cContinued) 6 BKBAEFE)
2014 2013
ZE-NF —T—=
$'000 $'000
T T
(b) Staff costs (b) EI A
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EMN
in kind BEW@EN 76,139 72,953
Discretionary bonuses B 15 TE 41 12,930 9,453
Contributions to Mandatory BIESHR
Provident Fund 3,068 2,673
Equity-settled share-based payments e i B LA = B
2 FIE 2,229 =
94,366 85,079
(c) Other operating expenses () HMKEMEX
Advertising and promotion expenses EEREEAE 8,895 7,892
Auditors’ remuneration % B8 6 BN & 1,408 1,319
Commission expense to overseas BIME RS R
brokers 10,820 6,565
Handling and settlement expenses FEEBREEER 28,464 22,243
Information and communication B RBARX
expenses 23,046 21,037
Legal and professional fees EEREEER 1,716 3,007
Operating lease payments — property LEBANR— MERS
rentals 41,715 32,946
Rates and building management fees EZMREFERE 3,432 3,628
Miscellaneous expenses HMIEMAX 15,790 10,819
135,286 109,456
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INCOME

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HETHWRERZFEB
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) mEETEKRERZHIER
comprehensive income represents:
2014 2013
—F-mE —T=%F
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits  EI#i#i1E — FE A EBH
Tax
Provision for the year F R 30,743 15,243
Under-provision in respect of BEFEBREBETR
prior years 184 163
30,927 15,406
Deferred tax EERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary £ ¥ Z= %8 2 3R & # [0
differences (note 23(b)) (K12223b)) (1,074) (481)
Total tax charge for the year FAMEZ LB 29,853 14,925

(b)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
ended 31 March 2014 is calculated at 16.5% (2013:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the

year.

BE—_Z-—MNWE=A=+—HIFE
ZEBNEHBERZFE NG ER
S M16.5% (—ZZF—=4 : 16.5%) &f

st
H o
A

Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REABRIHEIHENLTHS
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: AR W B
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Profit before taxation B 75 B e 196,600 107,151
Notional tax on profit before taxation, #165% (T — =4 :
calculated at 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) 16.5%) 5t & 2 BB Al
it ) & & IR 32,439 17,680
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR MBREZ 2 B2 499 162
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARDW R 2 B2 (3.312) (3,161)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERKRBAREEBE
recognised MR E 212 153
Utilisation of tax loss carried forward B 3 3B 7 I 1 R
TIEEE (44) =
Under-provision in respect of prior years B FEEETE 184 164
Others Hfth (125) (73)
Total tax charge for the year FABIRERE 29,853 14,925
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8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 ESM=
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of BIEFH(ES QA aEN) (F6223) M E11
Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance 7816 (RBH(E B R T IEA) (B323)
(Cap. 622), with refelrence th) section 161 of the predecessor ) BB EEME T -
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:
2014
—g-mg
Salaries, Contributions Equity-
allowances to Mandatory settled
Directors' and benefits Discretionary Provident share-based
fees in kind bonuses Fund payments Total
ERLE
e 2ER HRB A
Ezne BNEAN BMEEL BESMZ EHZRE @zt
(Note)
(#it)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
r i T T T i
Yip Mow Lum ERAM - 4,412 - 15 - 4,427
Chan Kai Fung e - 1,530 260 15 109 1,914
Kwok Sze Chi $28 - 1,420 239 15 109 1,783
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson ~ BRok; - 698 120 15 87 920
Yu Yun Kong A 167 - - - 2 189
Szeto Wai Sun Al e M 144 - - - 2 166
Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph i 122 - - - 2 144
Total @it 433 8,060 619 60 37 9,543
2013
Salaries, Contributions Equity-
allowances to Mandatory settled
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary Provident  share-based
fees in kind bonuses Fund payments Total
Bk
Fe RER SAB AR &
g5Me EMREH ML BEeHT ERZRE @5t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T
Yip Mow Lum ERAM - 3,260 - 15 = 3,275
Chan Kai Fung PR - 1,452 205 15 = 1,672
Kwok Sze Chi #2048 - 1332 193 15 - 1,540
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson ~ BRok# - 665 100 15 - 780
Yu Yun Kong RENAl 156 - - - = 156
Szeto Wai Sun A fE4EAT 134 - - - - 134
Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph R BB 11 - - - - 11
Total @it 401 6,709 498 60 = 7,668
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8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) 8 EEM<E &)
No director received any emoluments from the Group as BEZEEASERDERMS  (EAMN
an inducement to join or leave the Group or compensation B AEB BB EE  TE
for loss of office and, no director waived or has agreed to EEHNEIREREETMAHNE ©
waive any emoluments.
Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted Bt : ZEFIREBREAR A BIRETEIRT
to the directors under the Company’s share option scheme. EERRECHTTEE 2EEREZ
The value of these share options is measured according to BE TR IR FE2() i) Frai AN E AR
the Group’s accounting policies for share-based payment DD AER 2 RBRX S 2@t HET
transactions as set out in note 2(I)(iii). o
The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal ZEBEYEN(REEDLZBRIEEXEF
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under FERHBE)ZHBRESSRE [ERE
the paragraph “Share option scheme” in the directors’ report HEl | —ER KM sE254 5 -
and note 25.
9 INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9 ®BS#HMA L
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three hEEeRFMALHEE=2(=F—=
(2013: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed FRBR)EF  REZHMEOMIE8IKE -
in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of BRIME(ZT—=F: =ZF) ALz
the other two (2013: three) individuals are as follows: BEWT
2014 2013
—E-MF —F—=
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RN EYREA 3,421 5,670
Discretionary bonuses BB IE4L 612 310
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund 38%& & £ 30 31
Equity-settled share-based payments e ks AR R AT 2 FE 325 -
4,388 6,011
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9

10

1

INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

The emoluments of the two (2013: three) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

9

BEEHFMALE)
UME(CE—=F  =R)BRSTFHAL
TMENTIATEHE

Number of individuals

AH

2014 2013

—ET—{F —E—=%F

Nil to $1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007C - -
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,0017T % 1,500,0007T - -
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,0017T%2,000,0007T 1 2
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,0017%%2,500,0007T - -
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000 2,500,001 7T %3,000,0007T 1 1

No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the financial year
(2013: Nil).

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a profit of $29,060,000 (2013:
$18,746,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 of
$166,747,000 (2013: $92,226,000), and the weighted
average number of shares in issue during the year ended 31
March 2014 of 1,043,942,452 (2013: 906,394,671).

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 of
$166,747,000 (2013: $92,226,000) and the weighted
average number of shares in issue and the effect of deemed
issue of shares under the Company’s share option scheme
during the year ended 31 March 2014 of 1,044,703,763
(2013: 906,688,474).

10

1

A B B F FE L A 1] 7% S5 A = S A fA) B
éf’ﬁ%ﬂﬂaﬁﬁﬁliﬁf‘bﬂkﬁ%zyﬁﬁiﬂ’ﬁ
RERME(CE—=F:8) -

K47 m BRREAS & R

AAREERREERE E—%
£ %29,060,0007T 2 i@ Al (ZF — =45 -
18,746,0007T) * Ik F B R 2N A 7] B 75 1)
RERIE -

& % ﬂ

BRER
BREABFNDEBE-_ZT—NF=
A=+ —BALFERARAIE=RKREE
154 A % M166,747,000C (Z B — =
% :92,226,0007) REE T —HF
A=+ —HLEFEDBEITRHG MNE
15 801,043,942 452HX(_T_*¢5
906,394,6710%) 5t &

BERESAMNDEEE-_Z—NF=A
== EJtEF“ZZIK"WEé‘Hx%rEE
45 A% F166,747,0007T (=T — =4 :
92,226,0007C) A KRB ZEZE T —MFE=H
=+—HILEFEEBHTROMNEFLHE
RBERBARARGERETS TR
252 71,044,703,763 (— T — =4 :
906,688,474/%) 5t & ©
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which

are organised by business lines.

In a manner consistent

with the way in which information is reported internally

to the Group’s most senior executive management for

the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment, the Group has presented the following three

reportable segments. No operating segments have been

aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

(a)

Securities broking — provision of broking services in
securities traded in Hong Kong and selected overseas
markets, and margin financing services to those

broking clients.

Commodities and futures broking — provision of
broking services in commodities and futures contracts
traded in Hong Kong and overseas markets.

Bullion trading - provision of trading services in
bullion contracts traded in overseas markets.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each

reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current
assets with the exception of unallocated corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include liabilities attributable
to the activities of the individual segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
earnings before finance costs and taxes (“EBIT").
To arrive at EBIT, the Group's earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as corporate administration
costs.

Comparative figures have been restated to conform
the current year's presentation.
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

12 o8B E &)

(b) Segment information (b) HHEHR
2014
—E-mF
Commodities
Securities  and futures Bullion
broking broking trading Total
BEmk
HERL HERLE BE2R5 et
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Revenue from customers: REEP 2=
- Brokerage commission - KRR 184,319 108,675 - 292,994
— Dealing income - RSHA - - 420 420
— Interest income from - FREEMNS
margin financing WA 107,180 114 - 107,294
— Interest income from NG S
IPO financing BEF S WA 9,672 - = 9,672
Consolidated turnover REEER 301,171 108,789 420 410,380
Handling and settlement BEERGEH

fees £H 35,323 59 2 35,384
Reportable segment revenue  A] 5} 45 2 #F U 2% 336,494 108,849 422 445,764
Reportable segment profit/  AI$RE D ELHEF]

(loss) (EBIT) (&18) (EBIT) 212,018 31,223 (1,280) 241,961
Depreciation for the year FRTE (15,296) (86) (117) (15,499)
Other interest income H A A S WA 34,007 3,487 14 37,508
Finance costs BA TS B AR (45,327) = = (45,327)
Additions to non-current FNREZERE

segment assets during nEbE E

the year 20,091 383 - 20,474
Reportable segment assets ~ AJ3REDEHEE 4,198,726 458,294 39,529 4,696,549
Reportable segment AREDHAE

liabilities (3,470,782) (256,790) (41,396) (3,768,968)
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

12 o8B E &)
(b) ABEH (&)

2013
—E-=F
Commodities
Securities and futures Bullion
broking broking trading Total
P &
FEHEL HERE BEERS mEt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000
FIT T T T
Revenue from customers: REEP 2 Wz :
— Brokerage commission - BiEAe 130,966 85,226 = 216,192
— Dealing income - R5HA - - = =
— Interest income from - FEREMNS
margin financing WA 55,875 8 = 55,883
— Interest income from - BRAHBE
IPO financing BE WA 1,206 - - 1,206
Consolidated turnover TEEER 188,047 85,234 = 273,281
Handling and settlement FEEBLEE
fees £H 28,517 40 - 28,557
Reportable segment revenue A k% 2 2P U 216,564 85,274 = 301,838
Reportable segment profit — AI ¥R 2 2% F
(EBIT) (EBIT) 100,810 24,047 - 124,857
Depreciation for the year FRME (12,762) (17) = (12,779)
Other interest income H i F 24 A 24,370 3,792 = 28,162
Finance costs LUR DU (16,801) (6) - (16,807)
Additions to non-current FRREZIERE
segment assets during DBEE
the year 12,194 145 - 12,339
Reportable segment assets Al & D EEE 2,834,292 331,879 = 3,166,171
Reportable segment ARENHEE
liabilities (2,307,121) (220,754) — (2,527,875)
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 12 93H/E &)

(c) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit, () AREDHBEN BEEREGBZ
assets and liabilities ¥R
2014 2013
—E-—UEF —=F—=
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Profit i Al
Reportable segment profit (EBIT) A & 55 & A(EBIT) 241,961 124,857
Finance costs B 7 B AR (45,327) (16,807)
Unallocated corporate expenses APOEARRAXL (34) (899)
Consolidated profit before taxation RE BRI ARE T 196,600 107,151
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AREDHEE 4,696,549 3,166,171
Elimination of inter-segment receivable % $5 4> %5 &5 & U 7008 (111,336) (9,715)
Unallocated corporate assets RO AREE 28,430 30,143
Consolidated total assets e BAERE 4,613,643 3,186,599
Liabilities 8E&
Reportable segment liabilities ARESHAFE (3,768,968) (2,527,875)
Elimination of inter-segment payable 8 5> 26 FE < 5K TE 160,098 98,798
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBARIBE (399) (46)
Consolidated total liabilities REBERRE (3,609,269) (2,429,123)
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13 FIXED ASSETS 13 BEEE
Leasehold Motor Office Furniture  Computers
improvements vehicles  equipment and fixtures and software Total
%8 RE  BAERE HBEREE EBHEREH @5
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $000
I r r I i T
Cost: RA
At 1 April 2012 R-E-—FNA—H 24,417 179 11,966 7,299 11,786 55,647
Additions AE 4,377 - 1,864 2,200 4,481 12,922
Disposals & (1,476) - (548) (788) - (2,812)
At 31 March 2013 R-E-=F=A=1-H 27,318 179 13,282 8,711 16,267 65,757
At 1 April 2013 RZE-=—4mA—H 27,318 179 13,282 8,711 16,267 65,757
Additions AE 11,424 - 1,449 4,246 3,355 20,474
Disposals HE (983) - (113) (453) - (1,549)
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-NF=A=1+—H 37,759 179 14,618 12,504 19,622 84,682
Accumulated depreciation: ZEINE
At 1 April 2012 RZZE——FNA—H 13,970 74 5,524 4,142 5,740 29,450
Charge for the year FRET 6,863 36 2,154 1,245 2,559 12,857
Written back on disposals R EREE (1,372) = (306) (580) = (2,258)
At 31 March 2013 R-E-=F=A=1-H 19,461 110 1,372 4,807 8,299 40,049
At 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=FNA—H 19,461 110 1372 4,807 8,299 40,049
Charge for the year FRREX 8,320 36 2,305 2,014 2,824 15,499
Written back on disposals A E B A (936) = (64) (259) = (1,259)
At 31 March 2014 R-E-NF=A=1-H 26,845 146 9,613 6,562 11,123 54,289
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 March 2014 RZE-ENF=A=1-H 10,914 33 5,005 5,942 8,499 30,393
At 31 March 2013 R-E-=F=A=1-H 7,857 69 5910 3,904 7,968 25,708
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14 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

14 HERBEE

2014 2013
—F-HMF =
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Statutory deposits with exchanges and RGREEMZ
clearing houses EEE® 46,718 47,425
15 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE P& UK BR K
2014 2013
—E—NOEF —_T—=
$'000 $'000
TR Fr
Accounts receivable from FEUER SRR B
— Cash clients —ReERP 214,861 178,006
— Margin clients - FREP 3,361,155 2,128,167
— Clearing houses — BEF 470,901 352,887
— Brokers and dealers - BERR 5 101,298 47,783
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREEE (900) (939)
4,147,315 2,705,904
(a) Ageing analysis (a) ERERDW

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable from cash

REI|BE PR BWIR S E P RFREK

clients as of the end of the reporting period is as DT -
follows:
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=

$'000 $'000
Frx T+t
Current BN AR 32,113 41,878
Less than 1 month past due & H D1 {E A 129,467 104,580
1 to 3 months past due #HER1 =318 A 25,824 27,402
More than 3 months past due B HIZ A31E B 27,457 4,146
Amounts past due BHS R 182,748 136,128
214,861 178,006
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15 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

(@) Ageing analysis (Continued)

Accounts receivable from cash clients relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default. These receivables are fully secured
by their portfolios of securities, at 31 March 2014,
the total market value of their portfolios of securities
was $1,242,397,000 (2013: $973,015,000). Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are considered fully
recoverable.

Margin loans due from margin clients are current and
repayable on demand. Margin clients are required
to pledge securities collateral to the Group in order
to obtain credit facilities for securities trading.
The amount of credit facilities granted to them is
determined by the discounted value of securities
accepted by the Group. At 31 March 2014, the total
market value of securities pledged as collateral in
respect of the loans to borrowing margin clients
and all margin clients were $6,829,244,000 and
$8,738,534,000 (2013: $4,475,210,000 and
$5,760,039,000 respectively).

Accounts receivable from clearing houses, brokers and
dealers are current. These represent (1) pending trades
arising from the business of dealing in securities,
which are normally due within a few days after the
trade date and (2) margin deposits arising from the
business of dealing in futures and options contracts.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
in note 27(a).

15 EWBERF (&)

(a)

fR#R 2 4T (&)

BURREEFPER S RZRIEBT
ERAEEHIEP - ZZERKGIBH
HEAGEHEEHR R-ZT—HF
“A=+t—RH EBAEFHFZET
{E/41,242,397,00070 (=& — =4 :
973,015,0007T) - BIEBA LR @ B
BEMEEARZEERIELRER
# RERGEERUTEEANEHR
EREHESE AT 2EKE -

BRAFREFZAERERRENE K
BIREXKEER HAREFERNAEE
HIFELFRFD UREER S E
REERE BTREZFEMES
BRASEEN EFSAERE
F-MR_E—WE=A=+—H "5
ERRHAIREFPEENITFREFE
REFEERESERERG 2™
B4 % 5 B #) 56,829,244,0007T &
8,738,534,0007t (ZZE — =4 : H Al
#%4,475,210,0007T }5,760,039,000
TT) ©

EWEER  BRERXIEZERARE
BE - BERFREMNEEEZFFH
ZHREEER S —RRRHARK
BENIHMEQEEPRERBHEA D
EBZHRRER °

REBEERRZE—TFBFEHRK
§¥27(a) °

BAIBHEHMEBERAF « —T— =/ —WFFR
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15 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 15 BWERRK (2
(b) Impairment of margin clients and brokers (b) EURFEREFURKELRREH

and dealers receivable MERE
Impairment losses in respect of margin clients and FBURAREREANMEL N 5 ERIE
brokers and dealers receivables are recorded using an ZREBENBERDE  AKE
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that =0 Uk B X IBE B A RE K E B
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the G FEUEIER T REEEEEEE
impairment loss is written off against margin clients WHFRR P A R4 K& 58 R
and brokers and dealers receivables directly (see note TEHEE (BT EE2(9)(0)) °
2(g)(i)).
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIRBEZFRNEHWT

during the year is as follows:

2014 2013
—E-WF —F—=

$'000 $'000

F Tt

At 1 April K™ A —H 939 965
Amounts recovered B W B¢ 58 (39) (26)
At 31 March R=A=+—8H 900 939
At 31 March 2014, the Group’s margin clients and R-E—NME=A=+—H  A&EBZHE
brokers and dealers receivables of $900,000 (2013: BB LA K&t 32 5 2 FEW FXTE900,000
$939,000) was determined to be impaired. The JL(ZZE—=4 :939,0007T) B FERAD K
impaired receivables related to margin clients and B o B R{E E W TE B B B IR R 2 2 77
brokers and dealers that were in financial difficulties BREPUEBLERTSEHERR  TEERE

and management assessed that only a portion of the HA{E AT Y [B] 28 5 fE Ya FR I8 o

receivables is expected to be recovered.
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16

17

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 16 HMEWFE RERBENRE
PREPAYMENTS

2014 2013
—F-HmE —T—=%F
$'000 $'000
Frx Tt
Rental and utility deposits ek KkEBLKS 12,667 12,980
Prepayments TE FRIE 2,467 3,387
Other receivables H b pE W 508 2,273 9,402
17,407 25,769

Included in the above balances are amounts of $14,602,000
and $13,378,000 as at 31 March 2014 and 2013
respectively which are expected to be recovered in more
than one year.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

R-E—NER_T—=F=A=+—H "
P A b5 2 RIE D R A14,602,0007T
213,378,000 C T8 HA i A — F £ I [E] o

RERBEEEEY
() RERBESEENEE:

The Group The Company
rEH AT

2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-NE —E-=F ZE-NFE —T—=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt Frx Tt
Deposits with banks RITFER 152,880 156,266 = =
Cash at bank and in hand RITEFHERS 217,494 225,212 4,129 7,019
370,374 381,478 4,129 7,019

The Group maintains segregated accounts with
authorised institutions to hold client money in the
normal course of business.

At 31 March 2014, client money maintained in
segregated accounts not otherwise dealt with in the
financial statements amounted to $2,944,099,000
(2013: $2,475,986,000).

BAESE

AEERRAIMBREBULIERS - ©
REXEBETRHEEFES -

R-_E—ME=ZA=+—H8" ' FER
BURFPEVERMBREEME S
BRIE s BFESE H/52,944,099,000
T (=ZF—=%:2,475,986,000 JT) °

BMEEEGRAT s —T— = —WFFH
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17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to

cash used in operations:

17 RERBEEEBY &)
(b) BRBIAEANEALCKCELRFTAERS

ZHER

2014 2013
—E-—UEF —=F—=
$'000 $'000
F i T
Profit before taxation B 5 A1 g A 196,600 107,151
Adjustments for: AT SIEELFHE
Depreciation e 15,499 12,857
Finance costs Bt S PR A 45,327 16,807
Interest income (excluding interest FMEWA(TBEREHAERE
income from margin and IPO RERARAZEEREZ
financings) B A) (37.643) (28,207)
Loss on disposals of fixed assets HERBTEEEZERE 290 554
Equity-settled share-based EmEEARGD R
payments A/t 2 5RIA 2,229 =
Changes in working capital: LEEET
Decrease/(increase) in other HEMIERBEE
non-current assets A (3 N) 707 (38,935)
Increase in accounts receivable JFE Ui BR XA 0 (1,441,411) (1,559,946)
Decrease/(increase) in other E W IR e K
receivables, deposits and TE R E R
prepayments (3 hn) 8,362 (13,289)
Increase in accounts payable JE 4 BR K42 0 167,998 144,653
Increase in accrued expenses FEFHB X I Ho Ath
and other payables JE 1< R 3B 3 0 13,937 3,887
Cash used in operations KEXKFAR S (1,028,105) (1,354,468)
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

18 RfBRAIZIRE

The Company

b /N
2014 2013
—E-OF —T=F
$'000 $'000
T T
Unlisted shares, at cost EEMRRG - KAE 1 1
Capital contribution FE 6,014 3,803
6,015 3,804

Capital contribution represents the fair value of share
options granted to the employees of a subsidiary of the

EERBRBHE20)(DAESFBRETA
REMBARIEE 2BRELFE-

Company in accordance with the accounting policy set out

in note 2(l)(iii).

(@) At 31 March 2014, the Company had direct or indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are
private companies, particulars of which are set out =

below:

() R—ZET—WE=A=+—0 " &x27
RUATHBAREAEEEIEER
W ZEMBARERLARE &
BT

Place and date of Issued and fully Attributable
Name of company incorporation paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
NEER S AR A S BREARBERA EibREER TEER
Direct Indirect
E# 3
Bright Smart Investment British Virgin Us$100 100% = Investment holding
Holdings Limited Islands (BVI)/ 100%7T RERR
BT REBRERAR 22 October 2009
EBRABR/“TTNE
TAZtZH
Bright Smart Asset Hong Kong/ $5,000,000 = 100% Inactive
Management Limited 18 August 2011 5,000,007 EEex
BIAEERARAR B/ _F——FN\ATN\H
Bright Smart Futures & Hong Kong/ $114,000,000 - 100% Commodities and
Commodities Co., Ltd 14 November 1995 114,000,0007c futures broking

BTHRRERBRAH

&8/ -NWN\EE+-A+EA AmRkHRER

BAIBHEHMEBERAF « —T— =/ —WFFR
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18 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18 RINBRA2RE #)
(a) (Continued) (a) (#&)
Place and date of Issued and fully Attributable
Name of company incorporation paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
RAER KL ERAH ERTRAZRE EERARR TEXK
Direct Indirect
E# B &
Bright Smart Forex Limited Hong Kong/ $30,000,000 - 100% Inactive
BIRFNEER A 23 April 2012 30,000,000t mex
&8/ -F-ZFNA
—t=AR
Bright Smart Global Hong Kong/ $10,000 - 100% Bullion trading
Bullion Limited 10 October 2012 10,0007 REERH
BIRKEXARAH BR/E-—FE+ATH
Bright Smart Investment Hong Kong/ $1 - 100% Investment holding
Consultancy (China) 9 November 2010 17T REER
Company Limited BE/_E-ZE+-ANA
RIRERAER(PE)
BRAR
Bright Smart Securities Hong Kong/ $481,000,000 - 100% Securities broking and
International (H.K.) Limited 10 August 1998 481,000,0007C margin financing
BIESER (BE)ERRA  BE/-AANENARTA BARRRARRE
Everlasting Source Limited Hong Kong/ $1 - 100% Inactive
BYERAA 8 December 2010 17 f it
&%/-2-FE+-ANA
Glow Dragon Limited Hong Kong/ §1 - 100% Administrative Services
BEERAH 21 January 2010 17T TH R
B/ _Z-FF-R=1-H
Huge Dynasty Limited Hong Kong/ §1 = 100% Administrative Services
REERAA 13 January 2010 17 THRH%

8/-%F-35- A=A
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18 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18 RMIB AT 2’RE (&)

(a) (Continued) (a) (#&)
Place and date of Issued and fully Attributable
Name of company incorporation paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
ARER HMEIERA S BRTRMRRA [ N £ TEER
Direct Indirect
E# 3
Ideal Magic Limited Hong Kong/ §1 = 100% Administrative services
WEGRAR 13 January 2010 17 TBR%
B%/-%5-TF-F+=H
Merit Act Limited Hong Kong/ $1 - 100% Administrative services
EEBRRRA 3 November 2009 17T TR R%
B8/ -2ENF+-A=H
Victor Tone Limited Hong Kong/ $1 = 100% Administrative services
ERARAR 21 January 2010 17 B R
£%/-%2-35-=1+-H
R Ew®ARI) People’s Republic of China/ $1,000,000 = 100% Inactive
BB A7 (Note 1) 10 January 2011 1,000,007 nELY¥
R BBHA (RY) PEARANE/ZF3-—-F
BRAR (W) -A+H
Bright Smart Finance Hong Kong/ $1 = 100% Inactive
Interactive Broadcasts 6 March 2014 17 Imex
Limited (Note 2) &/ _Z-ME=RKA
BT HREHER
BRRA(W2)
Note: 1. It is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned Hfat - 1. ERRITIRFREARKMEZMA—
enterprise under the People’s Republic of China. NS BERE -
2. On 23 April 2014, the subsidiary changed its 2. RZZE—NFMAZ+=H - KB
company name to Bright Smart Easy Finance RABE AR BN ARS S8
Company Limited. BRAFA e
(b) Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries (b) W ({F)ME A RRE
As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the amounts due BR-_ZE—MWNEFEF=A=+—H%A
from/(to) subsidiaries were unsecured, interest-free £230,000,000L (=& — = & :
and repayable on demand, except for the amount 80,000,0007T) 2 F& Y — i fff /8B 1 &)
due from a subsidiary of $230,000,000 (2013: HMBAERR BREREERESR
$80,000,000) as at 31 March 2014 was unsecured, BIRTTRIER B MN2.25% F F K518
repayable on demand and bore interest at HIBOR+ N RZEB—MER T —=F=H
2.25% per annum. The carrying amount approximates =+—8 - Bl () KBRRKE
to its fair value as at the reporting date. HREER 2EREARERER -

FREEEEREE B R A FERS
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19 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 19 ENEX
2014 2013
—_E—UF —_F—=
$'000 $'000
S5 Tt
Accounts payable JE 1 BR 3K
- Cash clients - HeEP 222,713 136,237
— Margin clients - fREP 524,005 359,275
— Clearing houses — EEPT - 90,172
— Brokers — L 35,670 28,706
782,388 614,390
All of the accounts payable are aged and due within one FERMNEZZCERE—EARNERN —@E
month or on demand. ARNEHsEEESKEE -
20 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER 20 FEGHBIX R H b B FIE
PAYABLES
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E—NF —T—=F
$'000 $'000
Frx T
Commission rebate payable FERAEE R 13,036 5,769
Accrued bonuses JEETIEAL 3,475 2,671
Stamp duty, trading levy and trading ERENER  RHIBER
fee payables RHE 5,199 4,222
Other payables H b e ROE 13,801 8,912
35,511 21,574
The Company
P NN
2014 2013
—ZE-—NE —E—=%F
$'000 $'000
Fx T
Other payables H A & 1~ 5/ I8 265 27
All accrued expenses and other payables are expected to be TEHART A FE TR X N E th FE 1~ FRIE S A —
settled or recognised as income within one year. FRNEBHERAEBA -
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21

22

BANK LOANS 21 BITER
The Group The Company
rEE ¥ YN
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-NEFE —T=F ZFE-HWmF —_T—=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt T Tt
Bank loans RITER 2,776,000 1,690,000 230,000 80,000
All the bank loans are repayable within one year and FAERTEREAR—EFERNEERDEAR
classified as current liabilities. The carrying amounts of the HERE -RITEEZERERERE A TEMR
bank borrowings approximate their fair value. H e

The bank loans as at 31 March 2014 are interest-bearing
with effective interest rate of 1.86% (2013: 1.74%) per
annum. Securities collateral deposited by the Group’'s
margin clients was re-pledged to banks to secure these loan
facilities. Such banking facilities were utilised to the extent
of $2,546,000,000 (2013: $1,610,000,000). The fair value
of the collateral re-pledged to banks as at 31 March 2014
amounted to $4,765,002,000 (2013: $2,687,047,000).

The remaining bank loans amounted to $230,000,000
(2013: $80,000,000) were not secured.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS - 22
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance and not previously covered by the defined
benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of $25,000. Contributions
to the plan vest immediately.

BAESE

R-ZZE—NF=A=+—RHZBRTERIK
BEREFER186% (ZF—=F:1.74%) it
B AEECHERPAGEEZEFEAME
BEBTRT URGSEHEERME &
BAR 1T R & B 8 F2,546,000,0007T (= F
—=%:1,610,000,0007T) - R=—ZT— U4
ZA=+—H8 BEATRTZ2BERAGA
F{EA £ A4,765,002,0007C (Z T — =4 :
2,687,047,0007T) °

£ T230,000,0007T (=Z— =4 : 80,000,000
T IRITERBERAREE -

18 EE MR ER — RE MR
st

AEBRBERERVERE S ERIA
REEZSRERBIROIN DA RIER AR
TREBRMEAFEREZEERILR
HlEREe S ([RESE]) - BES
FPEIRERHEERARGE - ABUERA
B - RigwiEETE  BERHEEERA
RiRE BB A Z5% maT8I1EE #t5R -
M A& A AE B W A 25,0007T 4% LR - 5t El

HRENE 57 8 -

BMEEEGRAT s —T— = —WFFH
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 FREMBERRERZFE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) #HRAEFBMRAR ZBENEAFIIEE ¢

financial position represents:

The Group The Company
AEH ¥ NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NFE —E-=F ZEBE-NFE —T—=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Fx T
Provision for Hong Kong FANEEFE
Profits Tax for the year B 30,743 15,243 76 =
Provisional Profits Tax paid & & #1154 (15,446) (12,110) = =
15,297 3,133 76 =
(b)(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities represents: b))EZEHBEBEEREEFIE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities REEHBRAKERELERIE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial (BE) /AEEARBY RFERESH 0N
position and the movements during the year are as Nk
follows:
Difference
between
depreciation
allowance
and the
Prepaid Accrued related
bonuses bonuses depreciation Total
ERER
AL EEAL HBRECZE @t
$000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr T T
Deferred tax (assets)/ BATEEEE ZELHE
liabilities arising from: (BE)/8f:
At 1 April 2012 R-ZE—-%mA—H 114 (498) 576 192
Charged/(credited) to REZME/ (GTA)
profit or loss (note 7(a)) (Kt5#7(a) 6 57 (544) (481)
At 31 March 2013 RZZE—=f=ZA=+—H 120 (441) 32 (289)
At 1 April 2013 RZZE—=FMA—H 120 (441) 32 (289)
Credited to profit or loss REz@EA
(note 7(a)) (Hiit7(a) (38) (133) (903) (1,074)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-MFE=A=+—H 82 (574) (871) (1,363)
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

23 GKEMBERRRZAEH @)

(Continued)
(b)(ii)Reconciliation to the statement of financial (b)(ii) B FE AR S 3R 2 ¥ BR
position
2014 2013
—E-IF —F—=
$'000 $'000
F T
Net deferred tax asset recognised BB AR 3R R R
in the statement of financial RETIEE EFE
position (1,436) (315)
Net deferred tax liabilities ERFBRREKFER
recognised in the statement of BRI IE 8 EFE
financial position 73 26
(1,363) (289)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(a) Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the Group's
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:

24 EXR-FERBRE

(a) EHmARBIZBE

7R WA A 25 5 4B 2 B9 8 2
Kikthy HWERNGA BABDE -
AR T4 B 2 AR 3D 1A AN 4
MREREZ BHEERIINT

BAIBHEHMEBERAF « —T— =/ —WFFR
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 EXR - #FERKRE 2
(Continued)
(a) Movement in components of equity (a) EZARTOZ2EE (&)
(Continued)
The Company
N
Share
Share Share option Retained

capital premium reserve profits  Total equity

B& ROEE  EBRERE REER @it

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

T T i T T

At 1 April 2012 RZE-——#MA—-R 204,847 181,907 3,427 11,678 401,859

Dividend paid during the year FRRNERE - (18,436) = - (18,436)

Shares issued under rights issue HRBTEETRA 102,423 85,353 - = 187,776

Shares issuance costs B BT A - (2,514) = = (2,514)
Shares issued under BRETEIET

share option scheme RESHE) 2,071 4,009 (1,454) = 4,626
Profit and total comprehensive ERENREE

income for the year Waas - - = 18,746 18,746

Equity-settled share-based payments #E &4 & AR (7 BERE 2 708 - = (286) = (286)

At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F5=ZA=1+—-H 309,341 250,319 1,687 30,424 591,771

At 1 April 2013 RZE—=F#MA—H 309,341 250,319 1,687 30,424 591,771

Dividend paid during the year ERRTRE - - - (28,039) (28,039)

New shares issued BER{THMR 22,500 75,000 - - 97,500

Shares issuance costs BRAEITHA - (3,421) - - (3,421)
Shares issued under BREEIE T

share option scheme BEIRM 4,437 10,500 (3,055) = 11,882
Profit and total comprehensive ERENREE

income for the year WmiEE - - - 29,060 29,060

Equity-settled share-based payments # & & AR {3 AEM 2 U8 - - 2,211 - 2211

At 31 March 2014 W-E-ME=A=+—H 336278 332,398 843 31,445 700,964
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 EXR - BEERRE #®)
(Continued)
(b)(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of b)) EEESZRREGRFEEENS
the Group attributable to the year BRE
Dividends declared in respect of the current year are AEBEERKREWNT
as follows:
2014 2013
—F-mE —EF—=F
$'000 $'000
Frx Tt

Final dividend proposed after the
end of the reporting period of
4.5 cents per ordinary share
(2013: 2.7 cents per ordinary

RBEHREEZAARE
1% X @ 4. 510
T C=F:EkRER
f&2.740) (== — M4 -

share) 1,120,928,012/1%

(2014: 1,120,928,012 shares, T =4

2013: 1,031,136,040 shares) 1,031,136,040%) 50,442 27,841
The final dividend proposed after the end of the MEBHREEZRARAKREBFRERARAD
reporting period is subject to approval of the AEERERAFERNS i E B ENARE
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general Hi KRR BEBE -

meeting of the Company and has not been recognised

as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

(b)(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders (b)(i)FEEREERFEN L —BHF
of the Group attributable to the previous EzEMNRE(EFRACHMERX
financial year, approved and paid during the 1) :
year:

2014 2013
—EF-NmE =F—=

$'000 $'000

T Tt

Final dividend in respect of previous
financial year, approved and paid
during the year, of 2.7 cents per
ordinary share (2013: 1.8 cents
per ordinary share) (2014:
1,038,493,352 shares,

2013: 1,024,233,000 shares)

E—HBREE 2 RERE
TR @AR2.7M0 (F A
B8 R A)
—T—=F:85R
LTmig1.8 (L) (=T -4 -
1,038,493,352f% -
—E-=%F:
1,024,233,0000%) 28,039 18,436

BAIBHEHMEBERAF « —T— =/ —WFFR
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 EXR - #FERKRE 2
(Continued)
(c) Share capital () K&
2014 2013
—E-MF “E-=F
No. of shares Nominal value  No. of shares ~ Nominal value
R4 #E HfE ki %8 HfE
$'000 $'000
Tr T
Authorised: EE
At 1 April and 31 March REA—HK=A=+—H 2,000,000,000 600,000 2,000,000,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRMR:
At 1 April REA—H 1,031,136,040 309,341 682,822,000 204,847
New shares issued (note (i)) B BT (FEE() 75,000,000 22,500 - -
Shares issued under rights issue AT EE TR L
(note (if)) (M5E(D) - - 341,411,000 102,423
Shares issued under share REERES BT
option scheme (note (iii)) 2 BR 17 (B FE(ii)) 14,791,972 4,437 6,903,040 2,071
At 31 March W=ZR=+—H 1,120,928,012 336,278 1,031,136,040 309,341
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive RS AGBHKEITEERZEE R
dividends as declared from time to time and are EERARNATIANSHGIREMDHE —Z 3t
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the RKAGIRTEEMS AL EBREEZE
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard EES- v

to the Company’s residual assets.
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

Issue of new shares

On 27 January 2014, arrangements were
made for a private placement to independent
investors of 150,000,000 shares of $0.3 each in
the Company held by New Charming Holdings
Limited (“New Charming”) (a company wholly
owned by Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the Chairman
of the Board), at a price of $1.3 per share.
Pursuant to a subscription agreement of the
same date and the supplemental agreement on
29 January 2014, New Charming subscribed
for 75,000,000 new shares of $0.3 each in the
Company at a price of $1.3 each per share.
The subscription was completed on 11 March
2014 and 75,000,000 new shares of $0.3 each
in the Company were issued to New Charming.
After deducting the expenses in connection with
the subscription amounting to approximately
$3,421,000, the net proceeds from placement
of ordinary shares is approximately $94,079,000.
The net proceeds from the subscription were
used as the general working capital of the
Group.

Issue of new shares under the rights issue

On 6 August 2012, the Company completed a
rights issue to raise approximately $187,776,000
by issuance of 341,411,000 rights shares at a
price of $0.55 per share. After deducting the
expenses in connection with the rights issue
amounting to approximately $2,514,000, the
net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares is
approximately $185,262,000.

24 EX - REERE #)

() BAE#)

Wiz -

(i)

(i)

RITH IR (7
RZZE—NF—A=-+tHEE
HZHE - B RBERER AR
([FERAED (EEFSEFEERMK
EEZEMBZRR)EAZ
XA &1150,000,0004% & A% M &
03T Z2RMAABRE TR
BE -BRAEBRIIT -RE
AEZREBZEENR-_F—KX
F—AZt+hBzwamz
¥R RE A2 F]75,000,000
B &R EE0.3L Z FT AR - fE1K
ABERI3T REERZZE
—mFE=ZA+—BEK  AQF
75,000,0004% & A% E {E0.37C 2
MBRBEBEITTHRE Mk E
REHBE 2 X #3,421,0007T
% EEEERAMERIEFELY
#£94,079,0007T - REFTE N
BFEERERAERE s —REE
B o

1R 1% 1B % 1T ¥ IR 17
RZZE——F)\ANH ' X7
FERK —IEMEAR - mIRIEEAR0.55
JC 2 B 1 % 17341,411,0000%
HR% % 1D % & 187,776,0007T °
0Bk A B ARFE % 2,514,0007T
% BITETBRAESREFES
185,262,000 °
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 EXR - #FERKRE 2
(Continued)
(c) Share capital (Continued) () BA(#)
Notes: (Continued) HtaE - (4&)
(iii) Shares issued under the share option scheme (iii) FABREZETEZT
during the year are summarised as follows: BREGELLTF :
Number of Share
share options Share Share option
exercised Consideration capital premium reserve
ETREREHE 8 Rx RiaE ERERE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr i Tr
New shares issued due BHEZZ-—IF
to exercise of share ZA=T-ALEE
options for the year RiTREREMET
ended 31 March 2014 2 F R 14,791,972 11,882 4,437 10,500 (3,055)
New shares issued due BEZZ-=F
to exercise of share ZA=T-ALEE
options for the year BT EREMET
ended 31 March 2013 2 F R 6,903,040 4,626 2,071 4,009 (1,454)
(iv) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share (iv) R E B K s K JE K s ok
options at the end of the reporting period ITIEZ B IREAR
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=F
Exercise Number of Number of
Exercise period price share options  share options
T TEE BREE ERESE
13 October 2011 to —E——F+A+=HZE
12 October 2013 —E-=%tA+=H $0.677C - 8,522,172
26 June 2013 to —E—=FXAZ+AXBZE
25 June 2016 —ET—X"EXA=Z+EHEAB $0.98 3,870,000 -
3,870,000 8,522,172
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve

)

(1)

(7ir)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the
Company may be applied for payment of
distributions or dividends to shareholders
provided that immediately following the date on
which the distribution or dividend is proposed to
be paid, the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

On 29 June 2010, the Company acquired
the entire issued share capital of Bright
Ltd,
Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.)
Limited and Merit Act Limited through Bright
Smart Investment Holdings Limited from

Smart Futures & Commodities Co.,

their respective shareholders. The difference
between the nominal value of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired as a result of the
restructuring exercise and the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange thereof is treated as an equity
movement and recorded in “Merger reserve”.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair
value of the actual number of unexercised share
options granted under the share option scheme
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note

2(1)(iii).

24 EX - REERE #)

(d)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BEMEREN

KR E

REFSESQEE  AREZBH
BRI AEX N BIRN TRR 2D
IRSAE - HEERBEBE SN 20 K SO
BREBHBE  KXRABDAERTER
BREFEMNHEIBER -

B

R-ZE—ZFFEA-1+HLB  AQF
FRBRAREERER AT RBEAL
HEkEmBRAR B EHFERK
(BB)BRABIREEBRAAZ
BERRBEZEAR 2B T
MR - AEARES U 2 B R A
ZRAEEREARAETZRAEE
(ERRE) MEZZBAIEEREY
BE - W[t REIRN -

BREHE

B B 1o 8 B2 R AR R B RE2(1) (i) Y BA
Bty BERE 2 RIBRA Z @ 5T BUR T
RIRBBREAER T 2RTRBR
BRERZEBEZAFE-
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 EFX - FERRE @)
(Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserve (Continued) (d) REEMERBEWE)
(iv) Distributability of reserve (iv) Z7RFEE

The reserves of the Company are distributable to BIEAN N T2 4B 4% = 52 K40 N 4B
the equity shareholders subject to the provisions B - WIEBEFE{EH D IRE A
of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles NAIAMEER —MR A EEBAE
of Association and provided that immediately R EER 2RI T - AAAF A
following the distribution the Company is able L ESE N

to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

At 31 March 2014, the aggregate amount of RZE—NME=A=+—H" 17
reserves available for distribution to equity EDIRF AR AR 2 EE
shareholders of the Company was $363,843,000 48 4 %8 /5363,843,0007T (=&
(2013: $280,743,000). — =4 :280,743,0007T) °
(e) Capital management (e) EXEH
The Group’s primary objective when managing KEBEBREAZHEREARER
capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue SEBEKE e EBRERR
as a going concern, so that it can continue to KEBERKREEEALAESERK
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for AEEEE  BEAREFRE R XL
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services BEMEREA AERKFZ o b
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing EEAENBEEKERLTES (Fﬁ‘ﬁ*
access to finance at a reasonable cost. In addition, @) RABECAEBETHEBEAR
certain subsidiaries of the Group licensed by the HARERNRKEREESFRLPE (Eﬁftﬁ(
Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) are obliged BR)RAN(THBEBERMBAAUDIETZ
to meet the regulatory liquid capital requirements EERHNESHRTE -

under the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)
Rules (“FRR") at all times.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages REERG K E RS REREE RS
its capital structure to maintain a balance between # ErREHEREEEKTEZRS
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible % 5 [0] R B2 A2 fi B AN AR N 7S R 2 1T B
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages FAREE 7 ARG 187 - I B AR IR
and security afforded by a sound capital position, BrESHERNEEEL AR - BiF
and make adjustments to the capital structure in HMH% AME @ AEBEEERENE
light of changes in economic conditions. For the AAARFBESEGEAE  BUXH
licensed subsidiaries, the Group ensures each of EREE UNEERTEEES
them maintains a liquid capital level adequate to SEEMSIBMERHES Z2H K LT
support the level of activities with sufficient buffer to TREEFE T B 1A o P BA IR 4F J& B (X {A] B
accommodate for increases in liquidity requirements & FTEREHERRHETHHRE
arising from potential increases in the level of BRBETZRBESHRT

business activities. During the financial year, all the
licensed subsidiaries complied with the liquid capital
requirements under the FRR at all times.

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2013/14



o —

Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7% & 3% M 7+

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

PAYMENTS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 4 August 2010 by a resolution of the board
of directors of the Company whereby the employee,

consultants, contractors and directors of the Group are

entitled to the share option scheme. The options granted

have no vesting condition and are then exercisable within a

period of two years. Each option gives the holder the right

to subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants
during the year are as follows:

ARAR

—EBRETE R =T —

25 ERAEURODABER ZKE

FNAENEBEARAESEBBREREK
o AEEES - ER - AERRkESARE
SEBRAETS  c REZBRIEY EEB
iR R AR REEARTTE - B BRER
TREAENRBE - BRARR LB -

(a) FARHZHERRMEADT

Contractual
Number of Vesting life of share
share options conditions options
BREZ
BREHR BEERE NEEXH
Share options granted to directors: RTEEBRE
- On 26 June 2013 —-RZT—=F 1,700,000 Nil 3 years
NAZ+NHE = 34
Share options granted to employees: & F{& & Z BE A% :
— On 26 June 2013 —RZT—=F 8,290,000 Nil 3 years
NAZT+NH = 3%
Share options granted to a consultant: % ¥ — & & 2 B AR #E -
- 0n 26 June 2013 —-RZE—=F 500,000 Nil 3 years
NAZ+RHE i 34
Total share options granted BB A 10,490,000

BAIBHEHMEBERAF « —T— =/ —WFFR
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25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 BafEUROAER ZNKE
PAYMENTS (Continued) (&

(b) The number and weighted average exercise (b) BREHBERMELGTHEED

prices of share options are as follows: T
2014 2013
—2-QmF —F-=F

Weighted Weighted

Number of average  Number of average

share exercise share exercise

options price options price

mEFH il BB

BREHE TEE BEREHE 1188

Outstanding at the beginning ENHARITHE
of the year 8,522,172 0.67 16,268,000 0.69
Granted during the year FRARH 10,490,000 0.98 = =
Exercised during the year FRIE (14,791,972) 0.80  (6,903,040) 0.67
Lapsed during the year FAXMU (350,200) 0.90 (1,356,120) 0.69
Adjustment for rights issue {H B B - - 513,332 0.67
Outstanding at the end of the year FEREBARITE 3,870,000 0.98  8522,172 0.67
Exercisable at the end of the year FRAF17(E 3,870,000 0.98  8522,172 0.67
The options outstanding at 31 March 2014 had an RZZE—NWF=A=+—HREKRTE
exercise price of $0.98 (2013: $0.67) and a weighted CERETEEAE098T (ZE—=
average remaining contractual life of 27 months F:0.6770) * MIIHEEEBR T HE
(2013: 6 months). BAE27ER (ZE2—=F : 6f@AH) -
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25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Adjustments to exercise price and number of
shares options due to the rights issue

Upon completion of the rights issue on 6 August
2012, the exercise price and the number of shares to
be issued and allotted under the outstanding share
options had been adjusted pursuant to the terms
of the share option scheme and the supplementary
guidance issued by the Stock Exchange on 5
September 2005 regarding the adjustment of share
options under Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rules. The
adjustments to the exercise price and the number of
the shares falling to be issued under the outstanding
share options are as follows with effect from 6 August
2012 upon the Company’s allotment and issue of the
rights shares pursuant to the rights issue:

25 BRaEHURORER ZHIEA
(4)

(c)

Before completion of
the rights issue

THRERBREREEMARAER

R-ZZT——F )\ B/NB T EKIE -
TEERBEREARITEERES T %
TZRNE B BIRERERT BRR R
BIXATR_ETAFALARARER
REREIRE A RIZE17.03(13) 5%
2 fFigsl FAFHE - (THEERR
BERITEBERERETRITZROE
BzHABNOT  WAZZT—=—FNA
NEARR BB RBETHR
1) B AR 3K

After completion of
the rights issue

1R 52 R Al B 72 AL

Adjusted Adjusted

Number of exercise number of

Date of grant of Exercise price  shares falling price per  shares falling

the share options Exercise period per share  to be issued share  to be issued

KB BRE SEBRRT

REERERS gid: SRITEE RABE BRIEE A& E
$ $
T b

13 October 2011 13 October 2011 to 0.69 15,098,000 0.67 15,611,332

12 October 2013
“F-—#tAT=AZ
“F-=£+A+=A

—Z——%+A+=H

BABSEHEBERLDF o

—E-=/—NEFR
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25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 EREEURNAER 2FE
PAYMENTS (Continued) (&

(d) BREQXFERRR

(d) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on the Black-Scholes model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
Black-Scholes model.

1E R IR H B B 2 101 3 1 W B 2 BR 75
ZRFEDSBAREBREZ A
FEMFE - AREBEREZGEFA
FEFKABAR -SFRHEAGFE -
BEREZANFHRE/RZENZ R
BAZE - RETEREHEAANRTS
r—aTEHTEN -

2014

—E—F

Fair value at measurement date RETEHEBZATE $0.227T
Share price % B $0.987C
Exercise price T1E(E $0.987C
Expected volatility T8 HA R @ 51.01%
Option life BB A U 1.5 year4F
Expected dividends TEEARR B 2.76%
Risk-free interest rate 17 3\ B A1) & 0.31%

The expected volatility is derived with reference to
the historic volatilities of the Group based on publicly
available information. Expected dividend yield is based
on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

Share options were granted under no vesting
condition. There was no market condition associated
with the share option granted.

BHEEDERT T ARDRE 2 E
B SEREEZELRETE
FHRS T 2 BB AR o £
BHAMBZBR2EY  TEAY
BRFE -

FE AR A 4 ) By I R B AR AF - BB X
FETA 13 th B I B T 0 B R
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26 COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2014
not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:

26 EiE

(a) BEAXEIE

W=—B—mE=A=+—AYRERE
ZUBHRER I ERAEMNT

2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=
$'000 $'000
Fx Tt
Contracted for B4 649 8,422

Operating lease commitments

At 31 March 2014, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating lease on
properties are payable as follows:

(b) BEBAERE

R-F-—ME=A=+—8 " REY
REZ T HHE EMHET 2 KRR &K

EEERIAABEAER THHBE A

2014 2013

—2-mE —F—=F

$'000 $'000

Frx T

Within one year —F R 39,618 37,831
After one year but within five years —FRBERAEFRN 32,394 63,237
72,012 101,068

The Group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one year to four years, with an option to
renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

AEERBLEMOHESZHYE - %%
HO—RONT /B —FE2NOF  AEEE
HMEEMBHRRTUNES - BHOBTEE
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the
financial risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
amounts due from clients, brokers and clearing
houses. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposure to the credit risk is monitored on an on-
going basis.

In respect of amounts due from clients, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all clients
(including cash and margin clients). Cash clients
are required to place deposits as prescribed in the
Group's credit policy before execution of any purchase
transactions. Receivables due from cash clients are
due within the settlement period commonly adopted
in the relevant market practices, which is usually
within a few days from the trade date. Because of
the prescribed deposit requirements and the short
settlement period involved, credit risk arising from
the amounts due from cash clients is considered low.
The Group normally obtains liquid securities and/
or cash deposits as collateral for providing margin
financing to its clients. Margin loans due from margin
clients are repayable on demand. For commodities and
futures brokerage, an initial margin is required prior to
opening transaction. Market conditions and adequacy
of securities collateral and margin deposits of each
margin account and futures account are monitored by
management on a daily basis. Margin calls and forced
liguidation are made where necessary.

27 BERBREERAFE

AEBZEREERBTFELREE  RPES
A 2R R SN R B o T SCEE A AN £R [ P I
Z % E R R AN £ B B IR Utk 5 R B AT R
RzBsRERERERERRED -

(a) FERR

AEBZEERRIZREBESR
F B REEMZHIEA - ERER
BEERR  UANEEREERR -

EKEFPRIBETE  ARF (B
RASRARER)AARZMERE
EE - RTEMBER ZA - |
ERFPEABAKEZEERRRER
R BURE TP KATINERT S
B EERBZEEHRNIE  —&
RRXGBEBRA - EREEFZR
ENYREERE  RERREE
FREELZEERREN - A5E
—REAEZFPBERBESF R XL
ReFsfERRETPRIFRARE
ZERm - BURAREFPZARER
AREREERE pEmAHEELE
Bms RARMAXNEREZS -
EEEeBRERMANREFRE
FEBRERF cEFENMRRESR
EERH MERE  TEARER
KS8ITH R o
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of accounts receivable from brokers and
clearing houses, credit risks are considered low as
the Group normally enters into transactions with
brokers and clearing houses which are registered with
regulatory bodies and enjoy sound reputation in the
industry.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk as credits are granted to a large population of
clients.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
and to ensure compliance with FRR. The Group's
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirement
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and long term.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and funding in
the short and longer term. All of the Group’s liabilities
are expected to be settled within one year. Except
for bank loans, the carrying amounts of all financial
liabilities equal the contractual undiscounted cash
outflow. The contractual undiscounted cash outflow
of bank loans and loan from a related company as
at 31 March 2014 amounted to $2,776,473,000
(2013:$1,790,296,000).

BABSEHEBERLDF o

BREREERAFE®E)

(a)

(b)

=ERR &)
BRASE—RED[REERBEM

TRERAFAERUFBEZIRLERGEER
FMETR S BREEEREEME
RZEERRBEE -

Eﬁ“ﬁilﬁ%%%ﬁ\ﬁ%{#%% * 8
VTEEREFEER

AREE W EEHREMEMER - TS
AEBEHEERR -

REE <@

AEERNERHNELERRETACH
TEE  ERERENEMNEHNRE
FTE UHEERTEMBERRA - K
’EIZE&ﬁ%mE@E?\ﬁﬁEé{

2 WEBTEER ﬁﬁﬁi’ﬂ#ﬁﬂ
iﬁ@faﬁﬁ&ﬁ@iﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁ&%Z%E
EAEBMERE  UERNRESRDE

AN T
THFE -

REBZBRATHES S A KB
MBESHFE  BREFIZHESR
EoHEBENREHTE - AEE Y
FiEBEEPEN —FREN - BRiR
TERIN MEMBEEZREEY
HEFTHRMBRERLERE - X
—E—NF=ZA=1+—8 RITEXK
RRE—RBAERRZERZEEHN
RAGIRIA ML E/42,776,473,0007T
(ZZ—=% :1,790,296,0007T) °
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

27 BRAREERQAFE S

() F=mEp
FIEHE

AEBBREE S KA S NKRE
AFREPKDME - WIEEE
(MIFRERRRITER KHF
HaBE(mRTERIEE —F
BERABZER) TBRIPHEE
R AEBEZWARKER S
MBI EE B EAN KRR

(i) Interest rate profile (i)

The Group charges interest on its margin clients
on the basis of its cost of funding plus a mark-
up. Financial assets (such as margin loans and
deposit with banks) and financial liabilities (such
as bank loans and loan from a related company)
are primarily at floating rates. The Group’s
income and operating cash flows are not subject
to significant interest rate risk.

The interest rate profile of the Group at the TREFNREERBREBHZF

reporting date is as follows: RAES
2014 2013
= Lk —%-=
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BERAZ ERFIX
$'000 $'000
i T
Assets BE
Deposits with banks RITER 0.001% - 0.96% 152,880 0.001% -3.2% 156,266
Margin loans ARER 2.68% - 4.88% 3,357,779  3.0% - 4.88% 2,127,787
3,510,659 2,284,053
Liabilities 8f
Bank loans RITER 1.86% 2,776,000 1.74% 1,690,000
Loan from a related company ~ RE—FEERRZER - - 2.85% 100,000
2,776,000 1,790,000
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(77) Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 March 2014, if interest rates had
been 100 basis points higher with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s profit before
taxation would have increased by approximately
$7,347,000 (2013: $4,900,000).

As at 31 March 2014, if interest rates had been
1 basis point lower with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit before taxation
would have decreased by approximately $73,000
(2013: $49,000).

The increased/decreased profit before taxation
results mainly from higher/lower interest income
from deposits with banks and margin loans and
higher/lower interest expense on bank loans and
loan from a related company. Other components
of equity would not be significantly affected by
the changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
before taxation that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the
reporting dates and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to interest
rate risk at the reporting dates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2013.

(d) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily arising
from financial instruments that are denominated
in United States dollars (“USD"”), Renminbi, and
Singapore dollars (“SGD”). As the Hong Kong dollar
("HKD") is pegged to the USD, the Group considers
the risk of movements in exchange rates between
the HKD and the USD is insignificant. In respect of
financial instruments denominated in other currencies,
the Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an
acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary to address short-term
imbalances. The management monitors all the foreign
currency positions on a daily basis.

Exposure to currency risk and sensrtivity analysis

The Group’s significant net exposure to Renminbi
and SGD at the reporting date and the estimated
impact to the Group's profit/(loss) for the year had the
foreign exchange rates of Renminbi and SGD changed
at that date are illustrated below. In this respect, it
is assumed that the pegged rate between the HKD
and the USD would be materially unaffected by any
changes in movement in value of the USD against
other currencies.

BREREERAFE®E)

(o) RN=TmEb#E)

(i) #BEDH
R-ZE—WME=/=
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HAmMENER B M T A
%ﬁ%&%@z%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁéﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁkﬁﬂ
B o Tﬁ)ﬂ;ziﬁiigfii
Z*ﬁﬂ%ﬁ LT o

(d) SERR

AEBFAZIIMNERB EZREAE
T(TET]) - AR RF R TT ([
ML) FHEZ ST A - EEEA/%J_E
([B]) B AEERLS
T EE T RSB RN - 5
NEMEBFELEBIANS &
SEEEFTZHIFN TIRETHIE &
A EINEARIBE 2 T F 15
o BAERRRFEESRAIRR

ZKF - BIRET H A IMNER

A

=]

S B B R B R B BB 5 AT

fis ¥ & B AR 2 A BRHE: B 7 0 45 7 I =
EMEE  AEERREEHBUAR
e KT AN T PR K B oK L B R R

AR ESAEBRER2EN, (BE)
ZEETRFEITMT -t E - 2
RERETTRETTIE SN T & EETT
H\E HEREEZEMEHMIINE

E/
=
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7% 3 7% i 3+

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 27 MBEARERRDFE @
FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (d) IMERBS (&)
Exposure to currency risk and sensitivity analysis SR R AR AE R BB E 5T ()
(Continued)
2014 2013
—8-QmE I g2
Effect on Effect on
Net assets/  Appreciation/  profit before Net assets/  Appreciation/ profit before
(liabilities) (depreciation) tax and (liabilities)  (depreciation) tax and
in foreign in foreign retained in foreign in foreign retained
currency currency profits currency currency profits
WM E BRRA  DUMEHE HEHA
ZEE/ HMAE/ RARRE ZBE/ HBAE/  ENRRE
(B FE (RE) ENz¥E® (RE)EE (RfE) EMcPE
$000 % $'000 §'000 % §'000
Tr % Tr T % T
The Group A5E
Renminbi ARE 11,216 5 561 47,432 5 2,372
(5) (561) (5) (2,372)
SGD MR (12,359) 5 (618) - - -
(5) 618 - -
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change HRESNOBRINEER 2D ER
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re- REHENRE B EERAEE @I
measure those financial instruments which expose the EEB ST E - ZEDF R —
Group to foreign currency risk at the reporting date. T = F R LT

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2013.

(e) Fair values () AFHE
All financial assets and liabilities are carried at N—TEB-—mMER-—E—=E=7
amounts not materially different from their fair values =+—0 ARG EERAGEBTE
as at 31 March 2014 and 2013. EEEAFETES AR o
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f)

27 BRAREERQAFE S

BHEMBEERMBEE

Offsetting financial assets and financial

(f)

liabilities

(7)  Financial assets subject to offsetting,

enforceable master netting arrangements or

similar agreements

() Z#HH BFEIZHLHRK
BEUGBHERZHBEEE

As 31 March 2014

R-E-ME=A=1-H

Related amounts
not offset in the
consolidated statement
of financial position

BERGEBBRRE
BEHZRBEE
Gross
amount of  Net amount
recognised  of financial
financial assets
liabilities presented
Gross  offset in the in the
amount of  consolidated  consolidated
recognised  statement of  statement of Cash
financial financial financial collateral
Type of financial assets assets position position received  Net amount
)
BHRRE &a
Bz  BBHRRAR
ERASH CRIASH  2izeR RLE K
HHEEEER EEAE B4R EEFE il ReH
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
r i r i r
Accounts receivable due EYEBEER
from HKSCC and clients EFZEH 5978982  (2,206296) 3,772,686 (23,1000 3,749,586

BAIBHEHMEBERAF « —T— =/ —WFFR
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f) Offsetting financial assets and financial (f)
liabilities (Continued)

27 BRAREERQAFE S
BV EEERDBEE &)

(i)  Financial assets subject to offsetting, () SHHE> HFEXIZTHE
BUGBYRZHBEEE

(%)

enforceable master netting arrangements or
simiflar agreements (Continued)

As 31 March 2013
RZE-=F=A=+—H
Related amounts
not offset in the
consolidated statement
of financial position

TERNGRHHRRER

BH EBEE
Gross
amount of Net amount
recognised of financial
financial assets
liabilities presented
Gross  offset in the in the
amount of  consolidated  consolidated
recognised  statement of  statement of Cash
financial financial financial collateral
Type of financial assets assets position position received Net amount
i
FBAMRR )
e  HBRRK
BHAcR CHEILR  2izeR BYEE
MHEERS BEEE AfEEHE BEFE ERm e
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 §000
T T T T T
Accounts receivable due ERERLEE
from HKSCC and clients EF ZER 4729666 (2,332,480 2,397,180 (13,525 2,383,655
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 27 BBEBERERNFE®
FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(f) Offsetting financial assets and financial (f) BEMKEERMKERE (&)
liabilities (Continued)
(77)  Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, (i) FHH BEEXESHE
enforceable master netting arrangements or BB RZHEEE
similar agreements

As 31 March 2014
R=B-ME=A=1+-A
Related amounts
not offset in the
consolidated statement
of financial position
BERGEBBRRE
BEHzHBEHE
Gross
amount of  Net amount
recognised  of financial
financial liabilities
assets  presented in
Gross  offset in the the
amount of  consolidated  consolidated

recognised  statement of  statement of Cash
financial financial financial collateral
Type of financial liabilities liabilities position position received  Net amount
)
BHRR R e

B#z  BBRRE
CEATR CERER  2jlzER Lk

GEEY T BE#E  RESE  BEFE  EMR  FeE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000
7 & i 7 i

Accounts payable dueto ~ ENEBEER
HKSCC and clients XEZER 2,697,662 (2,206,296) 491,366 (23,100) 468,266

BAIBHEHMEBERAF « —T— =/ —WFFR
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f) Offsetting financial assets and financial (f)
liabilities (Continued)

27 BRAREERQAFE S
BV EEERDBEE &)

(i) Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, (i) S BFEHEXILHEL
BHUUGBHYRZHEE R

(%)

enforceable master netting arrangements or
simiflar agreements (Continued)

As 31 March 2013
RZE-=F=A=+—H
Related amounts
not offset in the
consolidated statement
of financial position

TERNGRHHRRER

BH EBEE
Gross
amount of Net amount
recognised of financial
financial liabilities
assets  presented in

Gross  offset in the the
amount of  consolidated  consolidated
recognised  statement of  statement of Cash
financial financial financial collateral
Type of financial liabilities liabilities position position received Net amount
i3
FBAMRR )
e  HBRRK
BHALR CHEIALR  2izeR BYEE
M ERR AfER EEET AEFE ERm FEHE
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000
T T T T T
Accounts payable dueto ~ EFEBEE
HKSCC and clients EF ZER 2,699,969  (2,332,486) 367,483 (13,525) 353,958
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 27 BRAREERQAFE S

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f) Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (Continued)

(iii) The tables below reconcile the “net amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position”, as set out above, to the accounts
receivable and accounts payable presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

BHEMBEERMBEEE)

(i) TRA/FEEFHBRRAKEN

MHEERMHAGFEI(IN
EXFE) BERa M BERARKE
51z I W B R B A B K 2
BE o

2014 2013
—E-MmE —F—=
$'000 $'000
F T
Net amount of financial assets o bl SH 18 & Bl
after offsetting BEFHE
as stated above 3,772,686 2,397,180
Financial assets not in scope A FEHK B8 B2 FR & B
of offsetting disclosure B & E 375,529 309,663
Impairment losses VEREN SR (900) (939)
4,147,315 2,705,904
Net amount of financial a0 _E K SH 18 & Rl
liabilities after offsetting BEFHE
as stated above 491,366 367,483
Financial liabilities not in scope I FEIRsHIFFE & E ~
of offsetting disclosure PBaE 291,022 246,907
782,388 614,390

BAIBHEHMEBERAF « —T— =/ —WFFR




Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7% 3 7% i 3+

28

29

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, corporate guarantees
provided by the Company in respect of banking facilities
granted by authorised institution to its subsidiaries
engaging in securities and futures broking amounted to
$2,073,000,000 (2013: $993,000,000). As at 31 March
2014, the subsidiaries has utilised $1,153,000,000 of these
aggregate banking facility (2013: $710,000,000).

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors do not
consider it probable a claim will be made against the Group
under any of the guarantees. The Group has not recognised
any deferred income in respect of the guarantees as their
fair value cannot be reliably measured and the transaction
price was nil.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as
follows:

28

29

HARBE

RIERR ARG RREZLFRPERL
MEBZHMBRRERATEEIG ZRIT
Fh & 2% K€ 4 %82,073,000,000T (=&
— =4 :993,000,00070) Z A Al &R - B
—E-MF=A=+—H WEBAREHH
ZERITRE B FE 21,153,000,0007T (=
ZT—=4 :710,000,0007T) °
RBEHR EEREREMEREAE
ERETMEARHEETR - ARERZ
ARTFETEARFERRIELAT A
EEVERZERREREMELZHA -

BEABEALTRS
REUBRRAMBIHBMEALER
5h AEEE A THEAMEALRS -

FTEEBASH M

AEEEBEEA LY HM (B EH
SESFT IR B A A T E E R SR AR
BHETESHMER LN 2%
o :

(a)

2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=

$'000 $'000

Fr Tt

Directors’ fees ESEoken 433 401
Salaries, allowances and benefits e RN EYREA

in kind 15,136 13,849

Discretionary bonuses BB IE AL 1,605 1,029

Contributions to Mandatory R AE R

Provident Fund 134 131

Equity-settled share-based payments  #a45 & LA 5 A& 2 5008 892 -

18,200 15,410

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
note 6(b)).

@R ATE ITRA] (R EE6(b))
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 EAXBEEALREZ &)
(Continued)

(b) Balances with related parties

(i)

(i)

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had accounts
receivable from related parties of $1,020,000
(2013: $655,000) and accounts payable due to
related parties of $1,053,000 (2013: $924,000)
respectively which was arising from the Group’s
ordinary course of business in securities broking,
margin financing and commodities and futures
broking. Accounts receivable/payable from/to
related parties are set at the same terms as those
normally offered to third party clients.

As at 31 March 2014, included in the other
receivables, deposits and prepayments were
rental and office management deposits of
$6,910,000 (2013: $6,850,000) which had
been made to related companies owned by a
director of the Company. These amounts were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable upon
expiry of the respective leases.

(c) Other transactions with related parties

(i)

Brokerage income of $138,000 (2013: $253,000)
and interest income of $497,000 (2013:
$61,000) was received from the directors of
the Company, their close family members and
related companies owned by a director of the
Company in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business of securities broking, commodities and
futures broking, margin and IPO financings, and
bullion trading. Commission rates are set at the
same level as those normally offered to third
party clients.

Rental expenses of $25,968,000 (2013:
$16,685,000) paid to related companies owned
by a director of the Company, were charged
at a rate mutually agreed between the parties
involved with reference to market rates.

(b) EBEALZHEH

(i)

(ii)

R-ZE—ME=ZA=+—8 "
AEEEWRBEEALTZER
#£1,020,0007C (=ZZ — =
655,0007T) R ERBAEA T 2
BR # &1,053,0000C (=T — =
% :924,0007T) * DRIKRERE
HEXBRAET ZESK
0 FREE R mEREL
WER - EEEAT ZRR
FEAT RS A T BR R — R T
FE= R REPEGZMER -

R—E—WNF=ZA=+—8"
Ha A - 1e kB RE
F74E6,910,000T (=ZF—=4F:
6,850,0007T) BR M AR 7 —
FEEHEZRAERARXM A
EEWAEEERSE - ERIA
AEK L8 0 Wi RERE
B E R E R -

() BEBALXZHMRS

(i)

(ii)

442 U A 138,000 (Z & —=
 :253,0007T) R A B A
497,000 (=& — = &
61,00070) I AR EE B 8 %+
ETESCEL BAaRkBEL
£ FFERERERAFEERE
REEERGEBMAARAE
= HBEIREXNERARR]—
FEEHE ZBEQRIE - /3
SWEBER—RAE=ZFEFIR
2 FHRKTE o

EN—E2ARRESHE 2 BE
a2 e $%25,968,0007T
—T—=%:16,685,0007T) /3
BRI A2 EMSHERE R
EZHEHE -

BAIBHEHMEBERAF « —T— =/ —WFFR
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Other transactions with related parties
(Continued)

(iii)

The total future minimum lease payment under
non-cancellable operating lease on properties
are payable to related companies owned by a
director of the Company as follows:

29 EXBEALIRS (&)

(c)

BEBEALTZHMERS (B)

(iii)

IR IR P B 45 2 78 40 3t 1 26 e
NARR—BESFHECAER
7] 2 AR R &K & I8 48 5 a0
T

2014 2013

—2-mE —F—=F

$'000 $000

T T

Within one year —F RN 26,304 25,860
After one year but within —FHRERAFRA

five years 26,008 51,720

52,312 77,580

On 13 June 2012, Bright Smart Securities
International (H.K.) Limited (“BSSI”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a new loan facility letter with
China Finance (Worldwide) Limited (“CFW"), a
company which is 100% beneficially owned by
the controlling shareholder of the Company, for
provision of an increased revolving loan facility
from $310,000,000 to $600,000,000 by CFW
to BSSI for general working capital purposes.
Interest expense of $1,494,000 was paid to CFW
during the year (2013: $3,270,000). The loan
bears interest at HIBOR plus 2.75% per annum,
is unsecured and repayable on demand. As at 31
March 2014, no drawing was made under the
facility (2013: $100,000,000).

On 31 March 2011, the Company entered
into a loan facility letter with World Mix
Limited ("WML"), a company which is 100%
beneficially owned by Mr. Yip, for provision of a
$310,000,000 revolving loan facility from WML
to the Company for the Company’s general
working capital purpose. Interest expense of
$498,000 was paid to WML during the year
(2013: Nil). The loan bears interest at HIBOR plus
2.25% per annum, is unsecured and repayable
on demand. As at 31 March 2014, no drawing
was made (2013: Nil) under the facility.

(iv)

R-E——FA+=H " &4
BHEBE (BB ARAA (12
FTEE] ARBZEEEEK
BAaa) B (B BR
RAE([HFESH] - NAE 22
BBREE2EEREEZAR) R
RI—FERBERG AR
PGB RRES FHFREMR
fEIREFFEE 310,000,000
JC ¥ A1 600,000,000t © A 1E
—MEBEES - FARTEE B
> A F B B S 1,494,0007T (=
T —=4:3,270,0007T) - EX
REBRITRZERENM2.75%F
FEEFE - AEEHRERENX
BE HRZTE—WOF=A=+—
B SiERRERaEmE (=
Z — =4 : 100,000,0007T) °

R-TE——&F=A=+—H" K
AREHERAR ([t
EEE2EEHEZRA)
B EXMERNY NAEH
i m A AR REEIRE R
%310,000,0007T * A{E— &
BE2 FAMEHBIAFE
f $498,0007T (=T — =4 :
T) EREEBRITAERE
N2.25%FFIEETE - BEET
MBERENREE R —HF
—A=+—8 BERREWE
BRE(ZE—=F:%) -
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30

31

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The directors consider the immediate parent and ultimate
holding company of the Company as at 31 March 2014 to
be New Charming Holdings Limited which was incorporated
on 6 July 2009 in the British Virgin Islands under the laws
of the British Virgin Islands and beneficially owned by Mr
Yip Mow Lum. New Charming Holdings Limited does not
produce financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and five new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2014 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may
be relevant to the Group.

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on or after

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments Unspecified
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that

the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Group's results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and
Audit”, of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) come into operation from the company’s first
financial year commencing after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the
company’s financial year which began on 1 April 2014) in
accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group
is in the process of making an assessment of the expected
impact of the changes in the Companies Ordinance on the
consolidated financial statements in the period of initial
application of Part 9. So far it has concluded that the
impact is unlikely to be significant and will primarily only
affect the presentation and disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements.

30 EERBRAERAT

31

EERR R-_T-—WF=A=+—8"
AR ZBEBRE RERERA B A
RAZERARAR  ZAADIR_ZTA
FEANRERBREABESREZBE X
BB ZEPIEMMAS  YHEXKELEER
Sl E - T RAZEKRER QAL ERHA
HARERZHHEHEK -

RBE-ZF-NF=A=+—H
IEFEEEMEERER2E
g‘%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁzi £
BEHSHBRETIEEE - BESHEAA
EEREBTIINBE-T-—MF=A=+—
B L4 5 AR A0 L 30 0 55 B T SRR
FRBZETEATRAERER  2IFN
TEALELEE -

R T5I B #sk 2 &

B %6 2 & AT HIRE A
BREMBHREER
9% 2@ TA RIETE

AREB LR GEZFEFEERERRE
EHELZRE 25 BRaRM L
BETAFIREH AR E 2 & X8 N5
RREREARTE

AN - RIBEEBIADIE622EFH B AL R A MK
15535815 - X IGRPIFIRB MR B MFEST | 2
RERARRAR _FT—MF=A=HRKH
Mz BEMBEE (ARARR —FT—M4F
MA—BR M BFEE) LB - AEHE
RENERAGI cBEHNERERASE
M EMBRMERZEBHRLE - BE
BRIRL  HRBBBUTETANERE
REEREIZHZEGAMBBRREMZE
5l Ko 4 FR
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Five-year Financial Summary
L FEIHEE

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE
Results E4 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-NFE —ZT—= —E——F ZE2——%F ZZT—ZF
HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FTHERT FHETT FHET T T T

Turnover S 410,380 273,281 228,707 188,202 140,240
Profit before taxation B 11 A & A 196,600 107,151 73,351 48,635 72,211
Income tax FTi5 (29,853) (14,925) (12,715) (8,017) (11,927)
Profit for the year & 3% 7 166,747 92,226 60,636 40,618 60,284

As at 31 March
R=RA=+—8H
Assets and Liabilities Z¥ERAMR 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
ZE-NFE —T—=F T _F —_T——F _T-FTF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET FET FHET FHET

Current assets MENEE 4,520,494 3,099,773 1,555,492 1,709,199 930,086
Non-current assets EREBEE 93,149 86,826 34,687 45,766 12,239
Total assets BEBE 4,613,643 3,186,599 1,590,179 1,754,965 942,325
Current liabilities mEEE 3,609,196 2,429,097 1,096,188 1,312,871 790,273
Non-current liabilities ERBEaE 73 26 193 515 -
Total liabilities aERE 3,609,269 2,429,123 1,096,381 1,313,386 790,273
Net assets EEFE 1,004,374 757,476 493,798 441,579 152,052

The results and summary of assets and liabilities for the year HE—ZEZ—ZETF=A=+—HIFEZ¥ENLE
ended 31 March 2010 which were extracted from the Company’'s EFBEHE (HEEEALATR _ZE—ZF )\ A
prospectus dated 12 August 2010 have been prepared on a +_-—HF|ZEZIEEETR) JIRIEGSEERS
combined basis to indicate the results of the Group as if the LAFERANEE 2 ¥ 4& (U0 RD B ARG FRBE RS B
group structure, at the time when the Company’s shares were FHEANEFBEENRZRBEEEEESRERLE) ©
listed on the Stock Exchange, had been in existence throughout

those years.
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